
   
 

   
 

 
 

 
 

OPEN SESSION 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
GOLDEN RAIN FOUNDATION OF LAGUNA WOODS 

A CALIFORNIA NON-PROFIT MUTUAL BENEFIT CORPORATION  
Tuesday, October 4, 2022, 9:30 a.m. 

24351 El Toro Road, Laguna   Woods, California 
Board Room/Virtual Meeting 

 
NOTICE OF THE AGENDA 

 
The purpose of this meeting is to conduct the regular Golden Rain Foundation Board Meeting in accordance with 

Civil Code §4930 and was hereby noticed in accordance with Civil Code §4920 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

1. Call Meeting to Order / Establish Quorum – President Carpenter 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance – Director Skillman 
   

3. Acknowledgment of Media 
 

4. Approval of Agenda 
 

5. Approval of Minutes 
a. September 6, 2022 – GRF Board Regular Open Meeting 
b. September 15, 2022 – GRF Board Agenda Prep Meeting 
 

6. Report of the   Chair  
 

7. CEO Report 
 

8. Open Forum (Three Minutes per Speaker) 
At this time Members only may address the Board of Directors regarding items not on the agenda 
and within the jurisdiction of this Board of Directors.  The board reserves the right to limit the total 
amount of time allotted for the Open Forum to thirty minutes. A member may speak only once 
during the forum. Speakers may not give their time to other people, no audio or video recording by 
attendees, and no rude or threatening comments. Members can attend the meeting by joining the 
Zoom link https://zoom.us/j/98131257242 or call 1 (669) 900-6833 or email meeting@vmsinc.org 
to have your message read during the Open Forum. 
 

9. Responses to Open Forum Speakers 
 

10. Consent Calendar 
All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are recommended for action by committees and will 
be enacted by the board by one motion. In the event an item is removed from the Consent Calendar 
by members of the board, such item(s) shall be the subject of further discussion and action by the 
board. 
 

https://zoom.us/j/98131257242
mailto:meeting@vmsinc.org


Golden Rain Foundation Regular Session 
October 4, 2022 
Page 2 of 4 

Recommendation from the Finance Committee: 
a. Consistent with its statutory obligations a subcommittee of the board consisting of

the Treasurer and at least one other board member reviewed and approved
preliminary Golden Rain Foundation financials for the month of August 2022 by this
vote ratify that such review be confirmed in this month’s Board Member Open
Session Meeting minutes.

b. Entertain a Motion to Approve Donation of a Drum Sander for Clubhouse 4
Woodshop

11. Unfinished Business

a. Entertain a Motion to Approve Vehicle Replacement Policy (September initial
notification – 28-day notification for member review and comments to comply
with Civil Code §4360 has been satisfied)

b. Entertain a Motion to Approve Golf Fee Pricing (September initial notification –
28-day notification for member review and comments to comply with Civil
Code §4360 has been satisfied)

c. Entertain a Motion to Approve Transfer of 2021 Operating Fund Surplus to
Contingency Fund (September initial notification – 28-day notification for
member review and comments to comply with Civil Code §4360 has been
satisfied)

d. Entertain a Motion to Approve Garden Center Operating Rules (August initial
notification – revised September – postpone – 28-day notification for member
review and comments to comply with Civil Code §4360)

12. New Business - None

13. The Board will take a 5-minute break (if needed)

14. Committee Reports
a. Report of the Finance Committee/Financial Reports – Director Hopkins. The

committee met on August 17, 2022; next meeting October 19, 2022, at 1:30 p.m.
in the Board Room and as a virtual meeting.

(1) GRF Treasurer’s Report – Director Hopkins
(2) GRF Finance Committee Report

b. Strategic Planning Committee—Director Dotson. The committee met on October 3,
2022; next meeting TBA

c. Report of the Community Activity Committee – Director Horton. The committee met
on September 8, 2022; next meeting October 13, 2022, at 1:30 p.m. in the Board
Room and as a virtual meeting.

d. Report of the Landscape Committee – Director Skillman. The committee met on
September 14, 2022; next meeting December 14, 2022, at 1:30 p.m. in the Board



Golden Rain Foundation Regular Session 
October 4, 2022 
Page 3 of 4 
  

   
 

Room and as a virtual meeting. 
 

e. Report of the Maintenance & Construction Committee – Director Garthoffner.  The 
committee met on August 10, 2022; next meeting October 12, 2022, at 9:30 a.m. in 
the Board Room and as a virtual meeting. 
 
(1) Report of the Clubhouse Renovation Ad Hoc Committee – Director 

Garthoffner. The Committee met on June 24, 2022; next meeting TBA. 
 

f. Report of the Media and Communications Committee—Director Milliman. The 
committee met on September 19, 2022; next meeting October 17, 2022, at 1:30 
p.m. in the Board Room and as a virtual meeting. 
 
(1) Website Ad-Hoc Committee – Director Milliman. The committee met on 

September 14, 2022; Next meeting, October 17, 2022, at 10:00 a.m. in the 
Sycamore Room.   

 
g.  Report of the Mobility & Vehicles Committee – Director Tibbetts. The Committee 

met on August 3, 2022; next meeting October 5, 2022, at 1:30 p.m. in the Board 
Room.  

 
h.  Report of the Security & Community Access Committee – Director Tibbetts. The 

Committee met on August 29, 2022; next meeting October 31, 2022, at 1:30 p.m. 
in the Board Room and as a virtual meeting. 

 
(1)  Report of the Laguna Woods Village Traffic Hearings – Director Dotson. The 

Traffic Hearings were held on September 21, 2022; next hearings on October 
19, 2022, at 9:00 a.m. as a virtual meeting. 

 
i. Report of the Disaster Preparedness Task Force – Director Skillman.  The Task 

Force met on September 27, 2022; next meeting November 29, 2022, at 9:30 a.m. 
in the Board Room and as a virtual meeting. 
 

j.  Information Technology Advisory Committee – Director Hopkins. The Committee 
met on September 30, 2022; next meeting October 28, 2022 as a virtual meeting.  

 
k.    Insurance Ad-Hoc Committee – Director Carpenter. The Committee met on July 25, 

2022; next meeting TBA.  
 
l.     Purchasing Ad-Hoc Committee – Director Carpenter. The Committee last met on 

April 7, 2022; next meeting TBA.  
 

15. Future Agenda Items - All matters listed under Future Agenda Items are Resolutions on 
28-day public review or items for a future Board Meeting. No action will be taken by the 
Board on these agenda items at this meeting. The Board will take action on these items 
at a future Board Meeting.     

 
• Garden Center Operating Rules 

 
16. Directors’ Comments 

 
 



Golden Rain Foundation Regular Session 
October 4, 2022 
Page 4 of 4 
  

   
 

17. Recess - At this time, the Meeting recessed for lunch and reconvened to Executive 
Session to discuss the following matters per California Civil Code §4935: Member 
Disciplinary Matters; Personnel Matters; Contractual Matters; and Litigation Matters. 

 
 

Closed Session Agenda 
VMS Board Update 
Approved the Agenda 
Approve the Minutes of: 

(a) September 6, 2022 – Regular Closed Session 
(b) September 15, 2022 – Special Closed Session 

Discuss and Consider Personnel Matters 
Discuss and Consider Contractual Matters 
Discuss Legal/Legislation Matters 
Discuss Member Disciplinary Matters 
 
18. Adjournment 



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 1 of 20



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 2 of 20



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 3 of 20



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 4 of 20



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 5 of 20



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 6 of 20



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 7 of 20



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 8 of 20



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 9 of 20



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 10 of 20



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 11 of 20



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 12 of 20



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 13 of 20



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 14 of 20



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 15 of 20



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 16 of 20



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 17 of 20



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 18 of 20



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 19 of 20



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 20 of 20



 
 

 
 
 

 
 

OPEN MEETING 
 

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
THE GOLDEN RAIN FOUNDATION OF LAGUNA WOODS 

A CALIFORNIA NON-PROFIT MUTUAL BENEFIT CORPORATION 
 

Thursday, September 15, 2022 – 9:30 a.m. 
Willow Room/Virtual Meeting 

 
GRF Agenda Prep Meeting 

 
 

Directors Present: Bunny Carpenter, Yvonne Horton, Gan Mukhopadhyay, Elsie 
Addington, Juanita Skillman, Reza Karimi, Joan Milliman, Don 
Tibbetts, Jim Hopkins, Egon Garthoffner, Debbie Dotson 

 
Directors Absent: None 

 
Staff Present: Siobhan Foster- CEO, Paul Nguyen, Makayla Schwietert, Catherine 

Laster, Carlos Rojas 
 

Others Present: None 
 
 

1. Call Meeting to Order and Establish Quorum 
President Carpenter called the meeting to order at 9:32 a.m. and established that a 
quorum was present. 

 
2. Approval of the Agenda 

President Carpenter asked for approval of the agenda. 
 

Hearing no objections, the agenda was approved by unanimous consent. 
 

3. Announcements 
President Carpenter made the following announcements: 
• The Annual Lunch at Clubhouse 2 will be held on November 9, 2022. Dorothy 

Pacella will be hosting. 
• Follow up on a fatality at a recreation facility. 
• President Carpenter and Director Horton are working on creating a contract rule for 

the Equestrian Center. Staff is currently reviewing it and then it will go on to legal. 
• Gave clarification on the Golf Course Fees as well as an update. 

 
Discussion ensued among the board. 

Agenda Item # 5b 
Page 1 of 2



Minutes of the GRF Agenda Prep Meeting 
September 15, 2022 
Page 2 of 2 

4. Discuss and Consider Items to be placed on the Tuesday, October 4, 2022, Board
Meeting Open & Closed Agendas

Director Milliman made a motion to approve the October 4, 2022, Open and Closed
Agendas. Director Karimi seconded.

Hearing no objection, the October 4, 2022, Open and Closed Agendas were approved
unanimously as amended.

5. Director Comments – None

6. Adjournment
The meeting was adjourned at 10:25 a.m.

Joan Milliman, Secretary of the Board 
Golden Rain Foundation 

Agenda Item # 5b 
Page 2 of 2



Golden Rain Foundation 
Community Activities Community 
September 8, 2022 

ENDORSEMENT (to Board of Directors) 

Donation of Drum Sander for Clubhouse 4 Woodshop 

Authorize the Community Activities Committee recommendation to review and recommend Board 
approval of the donation of a used drum sander for the Clubhouse 4 woodshop in accordance with 
the Donation Policy. 

A motion was made to approve the donation of a used drum sander for the Clubhouse 4 woodshop. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 1 of 14



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 2 of 14



STAFF REPORT 

DATE: October 4, 2022 
FOR:  Board of Directors 
SUBJECT: Donation of Drum Sander for Clubhouse 4 Woodshop 

RECOMMENDATION 
Review and recommend Board approval for a resolution of the donation of a used drum 
sander for the Clubhouse 4 woodshop in accordance with the Donation Policy 
(Attachment 1). 

BACKGROUND 
Laguna Woods Village clubs and/or individual residents have historically donated items 
to GRF to enhance GRF facilities, services and programs for the enjoyment of all Village 
residents. 

DISCUSSION 
The Clubhouse 4 woodshop supervisor would like to donate a used drum sander which 
has been deemed in good working order for use in the Clubhouse 4 woodshop. 
(Attachment 2). 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
None. 

Prepared By: Alison Giglio, Interim Recreation and Special Events Director 

Reviewed By: Steve Hormuth, Financial Services Director 
Catherine Laster, Services Manager 

ATTACHMENT(S) 
ATT 1: GRF Donation Policy 
ATT 2: Drum Sander Donation Request 
ATT 3: Resolution 90-22-XX 

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 3 of 14



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 4 of 14



Attachment 1 

Golden Rain Foundation │ Donation Policy 

I. Purpose
To provide guidelines and an efficient and effective process for accepting gifts and minor
monetary donations in a responsible, transparent and accountable manner that is
consistent with Golden Rain Foundation (GRF) goals. This policy also establishes guidelines,
standards and procedures for the installation and care of donated community
improvements. GRF desires to encourage donations while managing aesthetic impacts and
mitigating installation and ongoing maintenance costs.

II. Donation Defined
A donation is defined as any item of value given to GRF by a donor who expects nothing
significant of value in return other than recognition and disposition of the gift in accordance
with the donor’s wishes to the degree possible.

III. Sponsorships Defined
A sponsorship is defined as any item of value given to GRF by a donor. The sponsor expects
the publicity of the sponsorship(s) to attract new supporters, sponsors and donors alike.
Most sponsors like to share their activities, and GRF will typically highlight the sponsor.

IV. Types of Donations and Sponsorships
Donations and/or sponsorships may be offered in the form of cash and real or personal
property. Designated donations are donations the donor specifies for a particular
department, location or purpose. Undesignated donations are donations given to GRF for
an unspecified use. Typically, donations and/or sponsorships to GRF are made by
individuals, Village clubs or the Village Community Fund (VCF). VCF is a nonprofit 501(c)(3)
community-benefit charitable organization created by Village residents to provide support
for programs, services and facilities that enrich the lives of older adults.

V. Consistency with GRF Interests
Designated donations and/or sponsorships may be accepted only when they fulfill a
purpose consistent with GRF goals and are in the best interest of Laguna Woods Village.
GRF must always consider resident trust and comply with all applicable governing
documents and laws when accepting donations.

VI. Standards for Donations and Sponsorships
A. Acquisition or purchase: GRF and the community have an interest in ensuring that

community space elements shall be purchased and installed by Village Management
Services (VMS). Items selected for acquisition or purchase will be of high quality

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 5 of 14



related to style, appearance, durability and ease of maintenance. VMS personnel will be 
responsible for coordinating purchases and installations of all community space elements. 
All acquisitions and/or purchases shall be approved in advance by the GRF board of 
directors. In certain instances, the GRF board may waive the requirements that the 
community space element(s) be purchased by VMS. 

B. Appearance and aesthetics: GRF and the community have an interest in ensuring the
best appearance and aesthetic quality of community facilities. Community space
elements should reflect the character of the space or facility. All community space
elements will be installed in a manner that will not substantially change the character of
a facility or its intended use.

C. Maintenance: Donated community space elements will become GRF property once
installed and/or permanently placed in the mutually agreed-upon location. Accordingly,
VMS has the duty to provide only routine maintenance and repair of the donation for a
minimum of five years or beyond, if applicable. GRF, may, but shall not be required to,
replace the donation or community space improvement if it is stolen, vandalized, worn
out, irreparably damaged, destroyed or expires. In certain instances, the GRF board may
waive the requirement that maintenance costs be funded by the donor.

D. Repair: GRF has an interest in ensuring that all community space elements remain in good
repair. In addition, the community has an interest in ensuring that the short- and long-
term repair costs are reasonable. Repair parts and materials must be readily available.
Donated community space elements purchased must be of high quality to ensure
longevity and be resistant to the elements, wear and tear, and acts of vandalism.

E. Cost: GRF has an interest in ensuring that the donor covers the full cost for the purchase,
installation and maintenance during the expected life cycle of donated community space
element(s). GRF also has an interest in ensuring that ongoing maintenance costs do not
negatively impact the resources for maintenance of other GRF facilities. Consequently,
GRF will assess, at time of purchase, a charge sufficient to cover anticipated installation
and ongoing maintenance costs of donated community space element(s) during its
anticipated life cycle.

VII. Procedure for Making Donations and Sponsorships
A. Management: The applicable department director or services manager will manage the

proposed donation(s) and/or sponsorship(s) (Recreation and Special Events, Landscaping
Services, General Services, Maintenance and Construction, etc.).

B. Contact: Donor or sponsor must contact the applicable department director or services
manager to determine whether donation(s) and/or sponsorship(s) will be accepted and
the conditions of acceptance. If the donation(s) or sponsorship(s) is(are) accepted, the
donor will work with VMS staff to finalize the combined total cost of donation(s)
and/or sponsorship(s) and complete the Donation Agreement (Attachment 1).

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 6 of 14

Attachment 1



C. Committee consideration: Donation(s) and/or sponsorship(s) will be reviewed by the
applicable oversight committee prior to board consideration of donation(s).

D. Board approval: Final approval shall be granted by the GRF board of directors for
acceptance of all donations and/or sponsorships.

E. Board approval – VCF donations: Acceptance of VCF donations and/or sponsorships
requires GRF board approval of the Donation/Sponsorship Agreement (Attachment 1)
followed by execution of the corresponding VCF Project Application (Attachment 2).

VIII. Criteria for Acceptance
To accept donation(s) and/or sponsorship(s) of a community space element for a specific facility,
the donation must:

A. Meet a true need of the facility;

B. Not interfere with the intended current or future use of the facility; and

C. Not require the relocation of other equipment or infrastructure to accommodate the
donation and/or sponsorship.

GRF reserves the right to accept or deny any donation(s). 

IX. Guidelines
All determinations, will be based upon, but not limited to, the following guidelines.

A. Flowers, shrubs and bushes
1. Donated plants become exclusive property and maintenance responsibility of GRF;

2. Only those plantings that require a maintenance effort consistent with other
plantings will be considered;

3. Site preparation, installation and site restoration will be the responsibility of GRF;

4. Only perennial flowering plants will be permitted and incorporated in
existing beds; and

5. Placement of plants will be based on criteria such as the variety, color, mature
height and size. Compatibility with surrounding areas will be a strong
consideration for planted materials and their location.

B. Trees
1. Donated trees become the exclusive property and maintenance

responsibility of GRF;

2. Site preparation, installation and site restoration will be the responsibility of GRF;

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 7 of 14

Attachment 1



3. Tree placement/location will be based upon variety of tree selected, mature
height, size, etc. Compatibility with surrounding areas will be a strong
consideration for trees and their location; and

4. Size and species of tree(s) donated shall be limited to those determined by GRF.

C. Signage
1. No signage or slogans shall be displayed on donated personal property or those

items secured with U.S. dollar cash donations. Donation and/or sponsorship
acknowledgement shall be found listed on gratuity plaque displayed at one
selected location, e.g., the Community Center or applicable clubhouse, if gratuity
plaques are displayed there. Gratuity plaque will list only the name(s) of the
person(s) or the specific club name and the date of the donation and/or
sponsorship. Refer to Naming Policy.

D. Benches, tables and other amenities
1. Donated benches become exclusive property and maintenance responsibility of

GRF;

2. Site preparation, installation and site restoration will be the responsibility of GRF;
and

3. Amenity must be similar to or complement other amenities in the area.

E. Buildings, structures and public art
1. Donated buildings, structures (including playgrounds) and public art are not

considered as part of this policy.

X. Conditions
A. Cost: Donor covers the full cost for the purchase, installation and maintenance during

the expected life cycle of donated community space elements. Any surplus funds
would be applied to related or ancillary operational and maintenance expenses.

B. Installation: Installation of donated community space elements, including any donor
acknowledgement, will be completed by VMS personnel. Installation will be
scheduled at a time and date as determined by applicable department director or COO, so
as not to unnecessarily interfere with routine maintenance activities.

C. Removal and/or relocation: This section applies to both existing and new donations. GRF
reserves the right to remove and/or relocate donated community space elements and
their associated signage when they interfere with site safety, maintenance or other
activities.

XI. Distribution of Donation and Sponsorship
Agenda Item #10b 

Page 8 of 14

Attachment 1



A. Tangible items will be distributed to the applicable department director or CEO for use.

B. Monetary donations in U.S. dollars for the installation and maintenance expenses will
be deposited into the appropriate account for the designated department as assigned
by the director of Financial Services or recommended by the receiving department
director.

C. Donations of cash for undesignated donations will be deposited into appropriate
account for the designated department as assigned by the director of Financial
Services.

D. The director of Financial Services will allocate any surplus funds to related or
ancillary operational and maintenance expenses.

XII. Donation Record Keeping
A copy of the Donation/Sponsorship Agreement for accepted donations shall be forwarded to the
director of Financial Services for recordkeeping, the designated department director for which
the donation and/or sponsorship was assigned and the services manager.

XIII. Declined Donations and Sponsorships
GRF reserves the right to decline any donation if, upon review, acceptance of the donation is
determined in the sole discretion of GRF to be not in the best interests of the community.

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 9 of 14

Attachment 1



Agenda Item #10b 
Page 10 of 14

Attachment 2



Agenda Item #10b 
Page 11 of 14

Attachment 2



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 12 of 14



Attachment 3 

RESOLUTION 90-22-XX 
Donation Agreement between GRF and Clubhouse 4 Woodshop Supervisor 

This Agreement, entered into this 4th day of October, 2022, is by and between the Golden 
Rain Foundation (“GRF”), a California non‐profit mutual benefit corporation and Clubhouse 4 
Woodshop Supervisor (Donor) who donated a used drum sander for use in the Clubhouse 4 
woodshop. 

WHEREAS, GRF and Donor recognize the importance of community facilities and amenities; 
and  

WHEREAS, GRF and Donor acknowledge the benefit of donations when they have a purpose 
consistent with GRF goals and are in the best interest of Laguna Woods Village; and  

WHEREAS, the Donor has offered to donate a used drum sander for use in the Clubhouse 4 
woodshop; and  

WHEREAS, the Recreation and Special Events Department Director or Financial Services 
Director reviewed and affirms the proposed donation meets the criteria for acceptance 
contained in the GRF Donation Policy:  

a. Meet a true need of the facility;
b. Not interfere with the intended current or future use of the facility; and
c. Not require the relocation of other equipment or infrastructure to

accommodate the donation.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, October 4, 2022, that GRF and Donor in accordance 
with the described conditions and obligations, hereinafter set forth and agree as follows:  

Section 1  The donation, known as a used drum sander for use in the Clubhouse 4 
woodshop, described below, is donated in its entirety to GRF, hereafter 
owned by GRF and managed on behalf of the residents of Laguna Woods 
Village by Village Management Services, Inc. (VMS)  

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 13 of 14



Section 2  Donation description: a used drum sander for use in the Clubhouse 4 
woodshop  
Location: Clubhouse 4 Woodshop 

Section 3  Amount of Donation 
Item cost:  
Installation cost:  
Maintenance cost: 
Total estimated donation       

$2300.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$2300.00 

Section 4 GRF reserves the right to move/remove and/or retire the donation 
following cessation of the five-year period. The term shall commence 
upon the date entered into and indicated above.  

Section 5 GRF will not replace the donation or community space improvement if it is 
stolen, vandalized, worn out, irreparably damaged, destroyed or expires.  

Section 6 Installation and Maintenance: GRF shall be responsible for installation 
and maintenance of the item, including any reasonable repairs.   

Section 7 Term: The term of this agreement is a minimum of five years or beyond, if 
applicable; and   

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this corporation are hereby authorized 
to carry out this resolution as written.   

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 14 of 14



STAFF REPORT 

DATE:         October  4, 2022  
FOR:  Board of Directors 
SUBJECT: Vehicle Replacement Policy 

RECOMMENDATION 
Approve Vehicle Replacement Policy. 

BACKGROUND 
The General Services Department is responsible for the maintenance and replacement of 
more than 400 Golden Rain Foundation (GRF) vehicles.  Throughout the vehicle replacement 
process, the Vehicle Maintenance Division works with departments to select replacement 
vehicles that enhance operational efficiencies and have a reputation for being reliable and 
fiscally cost effective.  This process includes researching and selecting vehicle makes and 
models that will provide long term reliability, resulting in reduced maintenance costs.   

DISCUSSION 
On November 21, 2005, GRF established a policy to purchase new vehicles. Staff recognizes 
there may be situations where purchasing used vehicles or leasing vehicles may result in long 
term cost savings.  Revising the policy will allow the Vehicle Maintenance Division to review 
each class of vehicles to determine if purchasing used vehicles or leasing vehicles will produce 
long term cost savings. The attached Vehicle Replacement Policy (Attachment 1), provides 
guidance related to how vehicles are scheduled to be replaced, criteria for purchasing vs. 
leasing, criteria for purchasing used vehicles, and criteria for purchasing hybrid and electric 
vehicles.  The guidelines included in this policy are intended to maximize operational efficiency 
and long-term cost savings to GRF. 

The Vehicle Maintenance Division endeavors to replace vehicles before they become 
unreliable and prone to significant mechanical failure.  The proposed policy describes the 
process the Vehicle Maintenance Division follows to identify vehicles to be replaced during the 
development of the annual Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). The proposed policy also includes 
language that would allow the General Services Department to lease vehicles, purchase 
alternative fuel vehicles, and purchase used vehicles. Vehicle purchases will also follow 
guidelines established in the Purchasing Policy for capital purchases. 

Lastly, the proposed policy includes language directing the General Services Department to 
complete a fleet right-sizing assessment every two years.  The fleet right-sizing assessment 
will help ensure that the number and type of vehicles included in the GRF fleet are appropriate 
for supporting VMS operations.   

Agenda Item # 11a 
Page 1 of 8



FISCAL IMPACT 
None. 

Prepared By: Robert Carroll, Director of General Services 

Reviewed By: Carlos Rojas, Director of Operations 

Attachment: 
Attachment 1:  Vehicle Replacement Policy 
Attachment 2:  Resolution   

Agenda Item # 11a 
Page 2 of 8

** On August 3, 2022, the Mobility and Vehicles Committee considered the proposed vehicle replacement 
policy. While the Committee did not vote on the policy, the policy was favorably received by the committee 
with the understanding that the policy would move forward to the board for consideration. **



Attachment 1 

Vehicle Replacement Policy 

Purpose 

The purpose of this policy is to establish guidance related to how vehicles are 
scheduled to be replaced, criteria for purchasing vs. leasing, criteria for purchasing used 
vehicles, and criteria for purchasing hybrid and electric vehicles.  The guidelines 
included in this policy are intended to maximize operational efficiency and long-term 
cost savings to GRF.  Vehicle purchases will also follow guidelines established in the 
Purchasing Policy for capital purchases. 

1. Definitions
a. “Vehicle Maintenance” refers to the practice of maintaining a vehicle or

piece of equipment, and includes preventative maintenance, repairs and
inspections.

b. “Vehicle Lease” shall refer to the agreed use of a motor vehicle or piece of
equipment for a fixed period of time at an agreed amount of money for the
lease.  At the end of the lease, the vehicle has to either be returned to the
leasing company or purchased for the residual value.

c. “Electric Vehicle” shall refer to a vehicle that runs fully or partially on
electricity. Unlike conventional vehicles that just use fossil fuels, e-vehicles
use an electric motor that is powered by a fuel cell or batteries

d. “Hybrid Vehicle” shall refer to a vehicle that combines two power sources:
a gas engine and an electric motor.

e. “Life Expectancy” shall refer to the period of time, determined by the
Vehicle Maintenance Division, that we can reasonably expect the vehicle
to run reliably with minimal repair costs. (see Attachment A)

2. Identifying Vehicles to be Replaced/Added
a. The Vehicle Maintenance Division will work with VMS departments to identify

vehicles to be replaced or added during the development of the annual
Capital Improvement Plan (CIP).

b. Vehicle Maintenance will provide recommended vehicle options for
department review/consideration.  The vehicles recommended by Vehicle
Maintenance shall be proposed based on its ability to service and maintain
the make/model and the long-term operational efficiency and costs savings
provided by the recommended make/model.

c. Vehicle Maintenance will identify vehicles to be replaced based on the
following criteria:

Agenda Item # 11a 
Page 3 of 8

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Motor_vehicle
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Profit_(accounting)


2 

i. Overall condition of the vehicle as it relates to safety
ii. Decreased availability of parts and increased cost of parts
iii. Decreased availability of dealer support, diagnostic tools, etc.
iv. Overall cost of maintenance
v. Dependability
vi. Compliance Issues (for example: smog requirements)
vii. Mileage

d. Vehicles will be considered for replacement when they are projected to reach
the end of their life expectancy, as defined in the General Services’ Vehicle
Replacement Strategy document (Exhibit A).  The vehicles that most satisfy
the criteria included in Section 2.c. will be scheduled for replacement.  Not all
vehicles that reach replacement age will be submitted for replacement
consideration.

3. Lease vs. Purchase
a. The Vehicle Maintenance Division is responsible for maintaining GRF

vehicles, and has been successful in maintaining vehicles for well over the
anticipated life expectancy of selected makes/models.  This can result in
significant cost savings when a purchased vehicle is in service for an
extended length of time.

b. The General Services Department will consider cost savings and operational
efficiency when recommending whether to purchase or lease GRF vehicles.
When evaluating whether to purchase or lease, General Services will
consider the overall cost of ownership over the life of the vehicles including:

i. Original purchase price, or cost of monthly lease payments
ii. Cost of preventative (routine) maintenance over the projected life

expectancy of the vehicle
iii. The cost of unscheduled repairs over the projected life expectancy

of the vehicle
iv. Any vehicle mileage overage fees/vehicle damage fees (e.g.

equipment mounting damage on Security vehicles)
v. Proceeds from the sale of the vehicle when surplussed and sold.

4. Air Quality Considerations
In recognition of the region’s air quality challenges and in an effort to reduce
greenhouse emissions, hybrid and electric vehicles will be considered and used to
the extent possible, while considering the vehicles life-cycle costs and the ability to
efficiently support department operations.

5. Electric and Hybrid Vehicles
a. The Vehicle Maintenance Division shall consider the following factors

when providing recommendations for electric or hybrid vehicles:
i. Functionality and dependability of the vehicle as determined by the

using department
ii. Reliable availability of charging stations

Attachment 1

Agenda Item # 11a 
Page 4 of 8



3 

iii. Cost of the vehicle over its life-cycle (including initial purchase price,
maintenance, and fuel)

iv. The Vehicle Maintenance Division’s ability to support the equipment
technology

6. Purchase of Used Vehicles
a. The purchase of used vehicles is allowable and shall be considered when

the purchase of a used vehicle will provide increased cost savings over
the life-cycle of the vehicle and operational efficiency is not impacted.  The
following factors shall be considered when considering the purchase of a
used vehicle:

i. The availability of used vehicles that match the desired specifications
ii. Availability of pre-certified vehicles with 3 year/36,000 mile or similar

warranty
iii. The availability of white vehicles to maintain consistent VMS

professional image and fleet appearance

7. Fleet Right-Sizing Assessments
In and effort to ensure that the number and type of vehicles included in the GRF
fleet are appropriate for supporting VMS operations, the General Services
Department shall complete a fleet right-sizing assessment every two years
between January and March.  The assessment shall include a joint meeting with
each department director to evaluate each work center to determine the
following:

a. Ascertain if the number of vehicles is appropriate for the number of
employees working in the work center

b. Identify opportunities to share vehicles across work centers
c. Identify opportunities to downgrade vehicles where it makes sense (e.g.

from an F-250 to a Ranger)
d. Identify opportunities to reduce the number of vehicles in the fleet

The results of the fleet right-sizing assessment shall be presented to the GRF 
Mobility and Vehicles Committee in April/May for its review and input. Outcomes 
will be incorporated into the ensuing CIP and budget. 

Attachment 1

Agenda Item # 11a 
Page 5 of 8



4 

Exhibit A 

Vehicle Replacement Strategy 

Vehicle Type Vehicle Life  
Expectancy (Years)* 

One-Ton Truck 13 
Transportation Bus 7 
Passenger Car 10 
Electric Passenger Car 5 
Security Vehicles 5 
Large Dump 15 
Passenger Van 13 
F150/F250 Vehicle 13 
Small Pick-Up 13 
Work Van 10 
Utility Vehicle 10 
Trailer 15 

*Note:  Not all vehicles that reach replacement age will be submitted for CIP
replacement consideration.  When a vehicle reaches its life expectancy, the Vehicle
Maintenance Division will complete an assessment based on the criteria listed in 2.c to
determine if the vehicle should be replaced.

Attachment 1

Agenda Item # 11a 
Page 6 of 8



Attachment 2 

RESOLUTION 90-22-XX 

Vehicle Replacement Policy 

WHEREAS, on November 21, 2005, by way of direction from the Maintenance and 
Construction Committee, a policy was set forth to purchase new vehicles for the Golden 
Rain Foundation vehicle fleet; and 

WHEREAS, the Board recognizes there may be situations where purchasing used 
vehicles or leasing vehicles may result in long term cost savings; and 

WHEREAS, revising the policy will allow the Vehicle Maintenance Division to evaluate 
each class of vehicles to determine if purchasing used vehicles or leasing vehicles will 
produce long term cost savings; and  

WHEREAS, the Board recognizes the need to establish guidance related to how 
vehicles are scheduled to be replaced, criteria for purchasing vs. leasing, criteria for 
purchasing used vehicles, and criteria for purchasing hybrid and electric vehicles;  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED; October 4, 2022 that the Board of Directors of 
this Corporation hereby approves the Vehicle Replacement Policy, as attached to the 
official minutes of this meeting; and  

RESOLVED FURTHER, that Resolution 90-11-55, adopted June 7, 2011, is hereby 
superseded and canceled; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are hereby 
authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the purpose of this resolution. 

September Initial Notification 

28-day notification for member review and comments to comply with Civil Code 
§4360 has been satisfied

Agenda Item # 11a 
Page 7 of 8



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY

Agenda Item # 11a 
Page 8 of 8



ENDORSEMENT (to Finance Committee) 

Golf Fee Pricing 

Authorize the Community Activities Committee recommendation to review and approve the proposed 
Schedule of Golf Fees, inclusive of changes to green fees for members and guests, with an effective 
date of January 1, 2023. 

A motion was made to accept the proposed Schedule of Golf Fees, inclusive of changes to green 
fees for members and guests, with an effective date of January 1, 2023. 

Motion passed 6-1-0 (Director Blackwell voted no). 

Agenda Item # 11b 
Page 1 of 12



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY

Agenda Item # 11b 
Page 2 of 12



Golden Rain Foundation Laguna Woods Mutual 
August 17, 2022 

ENDORSEMENT (to board) 

Golf Fee Pricing 

Jose Campos, Assistant Director of Financial Services, presented a staff report 
submitted by the Community and Activities Committee recommending the Board 
review and approve the proposed schedule of Golf Fees, effective January 1, 2023.  

The motion passed by unanimous decision to accept this recommendation and present 
at the next Board meeting.  

Agenda Item # 11b 
Page 3 of 12



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY

Agenda Item # 11b 
Page 4 of 12



STAFF REPORT 

DATE: 
FOR:  

October 4, 2022 
Board of Directors 

SUBJECT: Golf Fee Pricing 

RECOMMENDATION 
Review and approve the proposed Schedule of Golf Fees (ATT1), inclusive of changes to green 
fees for members and guests, with an effective date of January 1, 2023. 

BACKGROUND 
The Golf Fees administered by the Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna Woods Board of Directors 
adhere to the Shared Cost Guidelines established in Resolution 90-12-132 (ATT2), whereby 
certain fees can be imposed upon users of various recreation facilities in order to control 
crowding and minimize over-usage, and to recover operating costs. 

DISCUSSION 
To ensure Golf Fees are being reviewed regularly and that revenues earned from fees are 
sufficient to offset a consistent and agreed upon share of costs, staff compiled a five-year 
analysis of revenues and expenses including a percent funded by fees. Every two years (even 
numbered years), staff will compare golf revenues earned through fees to expenses incurred. 
Staff will then propose fee changes (increase/decrease) to ensure the shared costs stay within a   
set percentage. Staff recommends the percent of golf expenses to be funded by fees shall equal 
approximately 70% - 75% while the percentage of costs to be shared by all residents shall equal 
approximately 25% - 30%. 

Actual  Actual  Actual  Budget 
V3 

Budget  Proposed 

All amounts in thousands  2019  2020  2021  2022  2023  2023 

Revenue  $1,777  $1,658  $2,276  $2,192  $2,443  $2,771 

Expense 

Compensation  2,159  2,278  2,162  2,216  2,322  2,322 

Other *  1,126  1,097  1,421  1,372  1,438  1,438 

Total Expense  $3,285  $3,375  $3,583  $3,588  $3,760  $3,760 

Percent Funded by Fees  54%  49%  64%  61%  65%  74% 

Percent Shared  46%  51%  36%  39%  35%  26% 

* Other Expense: Utilities, Materials & Supplies and Outside Services (3rd Party Landscaping)

Agenda Item # 11b 
Page 5 of 12



The proposed 2023 revenues $2,771M include Golf Green Fee increases listed in the table 
below. A full listing of 2022 Golf Fees can be found in ATT1 along with the proposed 2023 fees. 

Green Fees DESCRIPTION 2022 Fee 2023 Fee 
Proposed Change 

27 Hole Course Members $16.00 $20.00 $4.00
18 Holes Guests, Weekday $35.00 $40.00 $5.00 

Guests, Weekend $55.00 $60.00 $5.00 
27 Hole Course Members $8.00 $10.00 $2.00

9 Holes Guests, Weekday $18.00 $20.00 $2.00 
Guests, Weekend $28.00 $30.00 $2.00 

Par 3 Course Members $10.00 $10.00 $0.00
18 Holes Guests $16.00 $20.00 $4.00

Par 3 Course Members $6.00 $6.00 $0.00
9 Holes Guests $8.00 $10.00 $2.00

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
If approved, the Schedule of Golf Fees will reflect total golf expenses covered by fees of 74% and a 
cost shared by the community of 26%. While the proposed change to golf fees would increase revenue by 
an estimated $471,000 (ATT3) in 2023, as compared to 2022, the proposed fees are expected to maintain the 
shared cost percentage between 25% and 30% through 2024 inclusive of anticipated inflation of 3%. 

Green Fee Revenue  2022 Budget  2023 Proposed  Change 

Golf Maint 27 Hole Green Fees (WC 580)   1,505,000    1,970,000      465,000  

Golf Maint   9 Hole Green Fees (WC 581)         97,000       103,000     6,000  

Total   1,602,000    2,073,000      471,000  

Prepared By: Steve Hormuth, Director of Financial Services 

Reviewed By: Brian Gruner, Recreation and Special Events Director 
Jose Campos, Assistant Director of Financial Services 

Attachment(s): 

Committee Routing: 

ATT 1 – 2022 Schedule of Golf Fees with 2023 Proposed Fees 
ATT 2 – Shared Cost Guidelines GRF Resolution 90-12-132 
ATT 3 – 2023 Proposed Golf Green Fees and Projected Usage
ATT 4 - Resolution 90-22-XX 
GRF Finance Committee August 17, 2022 

Agenda Item # 11b 
Page 6 of 12



DESCRIPTION 2022
Fee

2023
Fee

Carts & Clubs
Cart Registration, Single Use $8.00 $8.00
Cart Registration, Annual Pass $60.00 $60.00
Cart Rental, 18 Holes $15.00 $15.00
Cart Rental, 9 Holes $8.00 $8.00
Cart Rental, Hand Pulled $1.00 $1.00
Club Rental $25.00 $25.00
Club Storage (locker), Annual Fee $45.00 $45.00
Club Storage (locker) , Monthly $12.00 $12.00

Driving Range
Driving Range, Large Bucket $6.00 $6.00
Driving Range, Small Bucket $4.00 $4.00
Driving Range, Quarter Bucket $2.00 $2.00

Greens Fee, 27 Hole Course, 18 Holes
Members $16.00 $20.00
Guests, Weekday $35.00 $40.00
Guests, Weekend $55.00 $60.00

Greens Fee, 27 Hole Course, 9 Holes
Members $8.00 $10.00
Guests, Weekday $18.00 $20.00
Guests, Weekend $28.00 $30.00

Greens Fee, Par 3 Course, 18 Holes
Members $10.00 $10.00
Guests $16.00 $20.00

Greens Fee, Par 3 Course, 9 Holes
Members $6.00 $6.00
Guests $8.00 $10.00

SCHEDULE OF GOLF FEES
Proposed

Attachment 1

Agenda Item # 11b 
Page 7 of 12



RESOLUTION 90-12-132

GUIDELINES FOR SHARED COSTS AND FEES

RESOLVED, November 6, 2012, that the following Guidelines for the sharing of
costs and for the levying and collection of fees reflect the policies and practices
which have developed over the history of Laguna Woods Village.  The Guidelines
are subject to change from time to time at the discretion of the Golden Rain
Foundation Board of Directors (GRF).

A. General Principles and the Shared Cost Concept:
I. Shared costs are costs of furnishing, maintaining, or operating facilities

and services which all Laguna Woods Village residents use or enjoy, or
have the right to use or enjoy.  They are costs budgeted as Golden Rain
Foundation operating or reserve expenditures shared equally throughout
Laguna Woods Village by manor.  The monthly assessment by each
manor ownership reflects an equal portion of these costs per the amended
Trust Agreement dated March 30, 1964, Paragraph 6: “Golden Rain costs
shall be included in monthly assessment on a pro-rata basis to members
of respective corporations.”

II. Reasonable fees may be imposed pursuant to the Trust Agreement, as
amended.

B. Exceptions to the Shared Cost Concept:
I. Utilization Control

In order to control crowding, to minimize over-usage, or to impose
reasonable limitations on guests, fees may be imposed on users of a shared cost
facility or service.

II. Financial Support of a Facility/Service

Reasonable fees may be imposed on the users of a new or existing
shared cost facility or service if GRF determines that fees would be appropriate
to help offset costs and reduce assessments.
III. Exclusive Use of Facility by Resident

Where only a small number of residents are allowed access to a facility,
GRF may impose a fee to recover certain costs of operating that facility.

C. Special Facilities:

Since the inception of Laguna Woods Village, two facilities have consistently
been declared to be free from the imposition of fees for use thereof by Laguna
Woods Village residents.

Attachment 2

Agenda Item # 11b 
Page 8 of 12



Additionally, there are other facilities where it would be difficult to collect fees or
where it may not prove to be cost effective.

D. Definition of Fees:

Inasmuch as GRF provides multipurpose facilities and services, a formula for
determining fees shall be applied to each such facility or service separately in
order to determine an appropriate fee amount.  When establishing fees, GRF will
review direct costs of operating the facility, reserve requirements for equipment
and facility improvements, and utilization.
I. Facilities Fee - A payment imposed on the user of a shared facility in order
to control use or recover a portion of the facility costs.  The fee should represent
an equitable and reasonable division of cost between the user and the monthly
assessment.

II. Administrative Service Fee - A payment imposed on the user of a service
provided by administrative personnel of the Managing Agent or a contracted
service provider.

III. Entertainment Fee - A fee assessed to individuals for a Recreation
coordinated event.

IV. Additional Occupant Fee - A payment imposed for each additional
occupant over two in a manor, whether owner or tenant, for the right to use
community facilities or services.

V. Nonresident/Guest Fees - A payment imposed on a nonresident, including
all non-Laguna Woods Village organizations, for use of a community facility or
service.
In the event that the owner(s) of any manor shall lease said manor to a tenant or
tenants, such tenant(s) shall be entitled to the use of all GRF facilities or services
as aforesaid during the term of said lease and the owner(s) shall not be entitled
to such use of said facilities or services.

RESOLVED FURTHER, that Resolution G-89-115 adopted November 7, 1989 is
hereby superseded and cancelled; and

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are
hereby authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the purpose of this
resolution.

I. The first of such special facilities is the aquatics and necessary related
facilities.  The special classification of aquatics derives from the view traditionally
held by the Laguna Woods Village community that the "swimming pool" is an
integral part of residential real property.

II. The second such special facility is the Laguna Woods Village
Transportation System.  Its special classification derives from assurances of the
original developer that the community bus system would furnish certain fare-free
bus transportation to Laguna Woods Village residents.  Rendition of this free bus
service has been endorsed and continued by the first and subsequently elected
Golden Rain Foundation Boards of Directors.

Attachment 2

Agenda Item # 11b 
Page 9 of 12



Weekday Member Guest Member Guest TOTAL Member Guest TOTAL

9 Holes $ 10.00 $ 20.00 64,100 1,200 65,300 $ 641,000 $ 24,000 $ 665,000

18 Hole $ 20.00 $ 40.00 55,800 2,700 58,500 $ 1,116,000 $ 108,000 $ 1,224,000

Weekend Member Guest Member Guest TOTAL Member Guest TOTAL

9 Holes $ 10.00 $ 30.00 ** 700 700 ** $ 21,000 $ 21,000

18 Holes $ 20.00 $ 60.00 ** 1,000 1,000 ** $ 60,000 $ 60,000

Work Center 580: 119,900 5,600 125,500 $ 1,757,000 $ 213,000 $ 1,970,000

Daily Member Guest Member Guest TOTAL Member Guest TOTAL

9 Holes $ 6.00 $ 10.00 11,500 2,500 14,000 $ 69,000 $ 25,000 $ 94,000

18 Hole $ 10.00 $ 20.00 300 300 600 $ 3,000 $ 6,000 $ 9,000

Work Center 581: 11,800 2,800 14,600 $ 72,000 $ 31,000 $ 103,000

** Note: Weekday and weekend projected rounds for Members are combined and listed as Weekday rounds.

2022 Budgeted Revenue

Work Center 580 Green Fees $ 1,505,000

Work Center 581 Green Fees $ 97,000

$ 1,602,000

2023 Projected Revenue

Work Center 580 Green Fees $ 1,970,000

Work Center 581 Green Fees $ 103,000

$ 2,073,000

2023 Revenue Change

Work Center 580 Green Fees $ 465,000

Work Center 581 Green Fees $ 6,000

$ 471,000

Green Fees 27 Hole Projected Rounds Projected Revenue

Projected RevenueProjected RoundsGreen Fees Par 3

2023 Proposed Golf Fees and Projected Usage

Attachment 3

Agenda Item # 11b 
Page 10 of 12



RESOLUTION 90-22-XX 
Golf Fee Pricing 

WHEREAS, resolutions 90-12-132, 90-18-03, 90-12-12 and 90-16-18 established 
guidelines for shared costs and fees; certain fees can be imposed upon users of 
various recreational facilities to control crowding, mitigate over-usage, and recover 
operating costs; and  

WHEREAS, the golf fees administered by the Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna 
Woods Board of Directors adhere to the Shared Cost Guidelines established in 
Resolution 90-12-132, whereby certain fees can be imposed upon users of various 
recreation facilities in order to control crowding and minimize over-usage, and to 
recover operating costs; and 

WHEREAS, every two years (even numbered years), staff will compare golf revenues 
earned through fees to expenses incurred. Staff will then propose fee changes 
(increase/decrease) to ensure the shared costs stay within a set percentage; and 

WHEREAS, Staff recommends the percent of golf expenses to be funded by fees shall 
equal approximately 70% - 75% while the percentage of costs to be shared by all 
residents shall equal approximately 25% - 30%; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed 2023 revenues $2,771M include Golf Green Fee increases 
listed in the table below: 

Attachment 4

Agenda Item # 11b 
Page 11 of 12



; and 

WHEREAS, at the August 11, 2022 CAC meeting, the committee recommended the 
proposed Schedule of Golf Fees, inclusive of changes to green fees for members and 
guests, with an effective date of January 1, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, at the August 17, 2022 Finance Committee meeting, the committee 
affirmed the CAC recommendation of the proposed Schedule of Golf Fees, inclusive of 
changes to green fees for members and guests, with an effective date of January 1, 
2023;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED,October 4, 2022 the Board of Directors of this 
Corporation hereby adopts the proposed Schedule of Golf Fees, inclusive of changes 
to green fees for members and guests, with an effective date of January 1, 2023; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this corporation are hereby 
authorized to carry out this resolution as written.   

September Initial Notification 

28-day notification for member review and comments to comply with Civil Code 
§4360 has been satisfied

Attachment 4

Agenda Item # 11b 
Page 12 of 12



ENDORSEMENT (to board)  

Transfer of 2021 Operating Fund Surplus to Contingency Fund 

Jose Campos, Assistant Director of Financial Services, presented a staff report 
recommending the Board to approve a $964,180 transfer from the Operating Surplus 
Fund to the Contingency Fund. In accordance with California Civil Code, a Common 
Interest Development shall not retain significant operating surplus.  

The motion passed by unanimous decision to accept this recommendation and 
present at the next Board meeting.  

Agenda Item # 11c 
Page 1 of 8



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY

Agenda Item # 11c 
Page 2 of 8



STAFF REPORT 

DATE: October 4, 2022 
FOR:  Board of Directors 
SUBJECT: Transfer of 2021 Operating Fund Surplus to Contingency Fund 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Board entertain a motion to approve the transfer of $964,180 of 
Operating Fund Surplus to the Contingency Fund. 

BACKGROUND 
The Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna Woods Operating Statement as of December 31, 2021 
reflected an Operating Fund surplus of $964,180 (net of depreciation). The Operating Fund is 
budgeted to break even, excluding depreciation. However, savings in compensation partially 
offset by increased insurance expense allowed the year to end with a $964,180 operating 
surplus. 

DISCUSSION 
IRS Revenue Ruling 70-604 requires an operating surplus to either be returned to the 
membership or be applied to future year’s assessment. Consistent with 2021, the 
recommendation is to transfer the surplus to the Contingency Fund (CNF). 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
The final excess of revenues over expense for the Operating Fund, as presented on the 
Changes in Fund Balance – Final 12/31/2021 (ATT1), was ($4,402,133). Detail of the 
depreciation adjustment to the operating surplus amounted to ($5,366,313). The net of the two 
balances leaves Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna Woods with a Total Operating Fund 
Surplus of $964,180. 

($4,402,133) Final Operating Fund Excess of Revenues Over Expense: 12/31/2021 
 (5,366,313) Less Depreciation 

$964,180  TOTAL OPERATING FUND SURPLUS 

Prepared By: Steve Hormuth, Director of Financial Services 

Reviewed By: Jose Campos, Assistant Director of Financial Services 
Pam Jensen, Controller 

ATTACHMENT(S) 
Attachment 1: 12/31/202 Changes in Fund Balance 
Attachment 2: Resolution 90-22-XX  

Agenda Item # 11c 
Page 3 of 8



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY

Agenda Item # 11c 
Page 4 of 8



O
pe

ra
tin

g
Fu

nd
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s

Fu
nd

Eq
ui

pm
en

t
Fu

nd
Tr

us
t F

ac
ili

tie
s

Fe
e 

Fu
nd

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y

Fu
nd

To
ta

l
R

ev
en

ue
s:

As
se

ss
m

en
ts

:
1

O
pe

ra
tin

g
$2

8,
51

8,
45

1
$2

8,
51

8,
45

1
2

Ad
di

tio
ns

 to
 re

st
ric

te
d 

fu
nd

s
2,

90
3,

80
8

2,
90

3,
80

8
3

To
ta

l a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

28
,5

18
,4

51
2,

90
3,

80
8

31
,4

22
,2

59

N
on

-a
ss

es
sm

en
t r

ev
en

ue
s:

4
Tr

us
t f

ac
ilit

ie
s 

fe
es

4,
97

1,
77

4
4,

97
1,

77
4

5
G

ol
f g

re
en

 fe
es

1,
65

6,
16

1
1,

65
6,

16
1

6
G

ol
f o

pe
ra

tio
ns

31
8,

82
7

31
8,

82
7

7
M

er
ch

an
di

se
 s

al
es

52
2,

65
1

52
2,

65
1

8
C

lu
bh

ou
se

 re
nt

al
s 

an
d 

ev
en

t f
ee

s
11

3,
33

1
11

3,
33

1
9

R
en

ta
ls

14
0,

77
9

14
0,

77
9

10
Br

oa
db

an
d 

se
rv

ic
es

5,
03

8,
20

8
5,

03
8,

20
8

11
In

te
re

st
 in

co
m

e
20

1,
31

6
20

1,
31

6
12

U
nr

ea
liz

ed
 g

ai
n/

(lo
ss

) o
n 

AF
S 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

(5
60

,8
72

)
4,

86
4

6,
72

4
54

1
(5

48
,7

43
)

13
M

isc
el

la
ne

ou
s

65
9,

08
7

65
9,

08
7

14
To

ta
l n

on
-a

ss
es

sm
en

t r
ev

en
ue

8,
44

9,
04

4
(3

59
,5

57
)

4,
86

4
4,

97
8,

49
8

54
1

13
,0

73
,3

91

15
To

ta
l r

ev
en

ue
36

,9
67

,4
96

(3
59

,5
57

)
2,

90
8,

67
2

4,
97

8,
49

8
54

1
44

,4
95

,6
50

Ex
pe

ns
es

:
16

Em
pl

oy
ee

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
an

d 
re

la
te

d
22

,1
19

,5
65

18
6

22
,1

19
,7

51
17

M
at

er
ia

ls 
an

d 
su

pp
lie

s
1,

57
0,

10
8

43
9

7,
31

9
11

6
1,

57
7,

98
3

18
C

os
t o

f g
oo

ds
 s

ol
d

43
1,

56
8

43
1,

56
8

19
C

om
m

un
ity

 E
ve

nt
s

45
,2

29
45

,2
29

20
U

tili
tie

s 
an

d 
te

le
ph

on
e

2,
39

4,
38

4
2,

39
4,

38
4

21
Fu

el
 a

nd
 o

il
48

9,
25

2
48

9,
25

2
22

Le
ga

l f
ee

s
73

7,
72

3
73

7,
72

3
23

Pr
of

es
sio

na
l f

ee
s

41
6,

86
7

41
6,

86
7

24
Eq

ui
pm

en
t r

en
ta

l
25

8,
81

6
25

8,
81

6
25

O
ut

sid
e 

se
rv

ic
es

2,
82

9,
91

3
2,

02
8

48
,0

00
2,

87
9,

94
1

26
R

ep
ai

rs
 a

nd
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
88

6,
50

8
2,

16
0

88
8,

66
8

27
O

th
er

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Ex

pe
ns

e
64

7,
88

5
3,

36
3

65
1,

24
8

28
In

co
m

e 
ta

xe
s

(5
48

,9
27

)
(5

48
,9

27
)

29
Pr

op
er

ty
 a

nd
 s

al
es

 ta
x

43
,6

22
43

,6
22

30
In

su
ra

nc
e

2,
65

8,
32

3
31

,4
56

2,
68

9,
77

9
31

C
ab

le
 P

ro
gr

am
m

in
g/

C
op

yr
ig

ht
/F

ra
nc

hi
se

3,
96

6,
50

8
3,

96
6,

50
8

32
In

ve
st

m
en

t e
xp

en
se

7,
73

9
2,

87
8

2,
80

6
31

3
13

,7
36

G
ol

de
n 

Ra
in

 F
ou

nd
at

io
n 

of
 L

ag
un

a 
W

oo
ds

 
C

ha
ng

es
 in

 F
un

d 
B

al
an

ce
s 

- F
in

al
 

12
/3

1/
20

21

At
ta

ch
m

en
t 1

Agenda Item # 11c 
Page 5 of 8



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY

Agenda Item # 11c 
Page 6 of 8



Attachment 2 

RESOLUTION 90-22-XX 

WHEREAS, in accordance with California Civil Code, a Common Interest 
Development shall not retain significant operating surplus (funds that are 
not needed to defray current operating costs); and  

WHEREAS, The Golden Rain Foundation Balance Sheet as of December 
31, 2021 reflected an operating surplus from prior year in the amount of 
$964,180 (net of depreciation) and the Board desires to return this amount 
to the member by way of a transfer the Contingency Fund;   

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, October 4, 2022 that the Board 
of Directors of this corporation hereby authorizes the transfer of 
$964,180 from accumulated operating surplus to the Contingency Fund; 
and  

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this corporation 
are hereby authorized on behalf of the corporation to carry out the 
purpose of this resolution. 

September Initial Notification 

28-day notification for member review and comments to comply 
with Civil Code §4360 has been satisfied

Agenda Item # 11c 
Page 7 of 8



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY

Agenda Item # 11c 
Page 8 of 8



Golden Rain Foundation 
Community Activities Community 
September 8, 2022 
 
 
ENDORSEMENT (to Board of Directors) 
 
Garden Center Operating Rules 
 
Authorize the Community Activities Committee recommendation to review and recommend board 
approval of the amended Garden Center Operating Rules. 
 
A motion was made to approve the Garden Center operating rules as presented; which included a 
change adding the limit of 9 feet under section L.6 and changed under section J.5. which should state 
D.1. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 

Agenda Item # 11d 
Page 1 of 20



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY

Agenda Item # 11d 
Page 2 of 20



 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 
DATE: October 4, 2022 
FOR:  Board of Directors 
SUBJECT: Garden Center Operating Rules 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Review and recommend Board approval of the amended Recreation and Special Events 
Department Garden Center Operating Rules (Attachment 1). 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Recreation and Special Events Department oversees all recreation facilities and updates 
the operating rules periodically on an as needed basis. The Garden Center Operating Rules 
were last approved December 6, 2016 with resolution 90-16-55 (Attachment 2). 
 
DISCUSSION 
During the pandemic, the Garden Center was one of the few amenities available for resident 
use. However, staff layoffs limited oversight and rule enforcement of the Garden Centers. As a 
result, resident gardeners made plot enhancements that do not concur with the current 
policies.   
 
The Community Activities Committee (CAC) requested to review and update the Garden 
Center policies for clarification purposes. Policy review and recommendations were received 
from staff, resident gardeners, the Garden Club of Laguna Woods and CAC members to 
ensure all relevant parties were involved in the decision-making process. 
 
The revised operating rules will ensure all gardeners can easily identify what is allowed moving 
forward. 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
None. 
 
 
Prepared By:  Alison Giglio, Recreation and Special Events Director 
 
     
Reviewed By:  Catherine Laster, Services Manager 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
ATT 1: Garden Center Operating Rules 
ATT 2: Resolution 90-16-55 
ATT 3: Resolution 90-22-XX 

 
Agenda Item # 11d 

Page 3 of 20



Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna Woods Village 
Garden Center Operating Rules 
October 4, 2022 
Page 2 
 
 
 
 

 
Attachment 1 

 
 

GARDEN CENTERS 
OPERATING RULES 

  
 

 A.  Introduction/Purpose  
  

1. The Garden Centers are recreational facilities managed by the Laguna 
 Woods Village Recreation Department and its staff. The Garden Centers 
 are a functioning farm that provides a relaxing enjoyable environment for 
 the residents to tend, grow and harvest their own fruits, vegetables and 
 ornamental plants.     
  
2. The rules and regulations have been designed to:  

a. Ensure the gardens are safe   
b. Ensure that community gardens are a pleasant place to visit and 
 admire  
c. Establish fairness and equality among gardeners  
d. Prevent damage to the land and groundwater  

  
 B.  General Operating Information  

  
1. Golden Rain Foundation (GRF) establishes the hours of operation, assign 
 personnel and otherwise oversee the operation of the Garden Centers. In 
 an ongoing effort to improve, the operating rules are subject to change 
 at any time. Any updates will be posted on the bulletin boards and 
 distributed via e-mail and/or website.   
   
2. You may contact the Garden Center at (949) 268-2387.  

  
3. Staff is responsible for enforcing the Operating Rules to serve the best 
 interest of all residents who use, or wish to use, the Garden Center 
 facilities. Staff oversees the Garden Centers; staff hours are posted at the 
 Garden Center office and on the Laguna Woods Village website.   

  
4. Operating Hours: Sunrise to Sunset.  

  
5. Odors: this includes second-hand smoke (cigarettes, cigars marijuana and 
 vaping), etc. and is a violation of the GRF Nuisance Policy.  

  
Agenda Item # 11d 

Page 4 of 20



Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna Woods Village 
Garden Center Operating Rules 
October 4, 2022 
Page 3 

C. Who May Rent a Garden and/or Tree Plot

1. Any authorized Occupant or Lessee, as defined by United Laguna Woods
Mutual and Third Laguna Hills Mutual, may request a Garden Center Use
Permit. One permit is issued per manor. Use Permits are only accepted on
official forms provided by GRF. All persons using a plot must be listed with
the following contact information: resident ID number, manor number,
address, home phone number, cell number, and e-mail if applicable. Use
Permits will be renewed annually in compliance with current adopted GRF
policies.

2. All fees are according to the GRF Schedule of Fees.

D. Signing Required Release and Waiver of Liability Agreement

1. All gardeners and partners are required to sign a Hold Harmless,
Release and Waiver of Liability Agreement. This signed agreement will
be maintained on file. This agreement limits GRF’s liability and waives any
claim a gardener may have, including injury or damage absent gross
negligence or willful misconduct. Forms are available online, at the
Garden Center office or the Recreation Office. The waiver agreement form
will periodically be updated and require a new signature.

2. Guests must be accompanied by an authorized resident at all times.

E. Temporary Working of Your Plot by a Designated Person

1. No one may work a garden for another gardener unless they are a
resident of Laguna Woods Village and listed on the Use Permit as a
partner with the appropriate contact information. If an individual is
found to be working a plot  without being listed on the Use Permit, the Use
Permit holder will be subject to disciplinary action which could result in
loss of gardening privileges.

2. Circumstances including but not limited to medical issues and extended
leave of absence may prevent a gardener from obtaining a resident
partner; such cases will be reviewed on a case by case basis by
Recreation staff.

F. In Case of Emergency

1. Emergency telephones that connect directly with the Security Office are
available at both Garden Centers.

Agenda Item # 11d 
Page 5 of 20

Attachment 1



Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna Woods Village 
Garden Center Operating Rules 
October 4, 2022 
Page 4 

a. At Garden Center One, the emergency telephone is located at the
Moulton side front gate.

b. At Garden Center Two, there is one emergency phone outside of
the office and another on the east side of the storage building (tool
shed and restroom) near the Maintenance Center.

2. In severe emergencies please call 911.

G. Gardener Responsibilities

1. Gardeners/partners are responsible for keeping their plots weed and
debris free at all times.

2. Gardeners/partners must do their own gardening.

3. Gardeners are not allowed to sublease or otherwise turn their plot over to
someone who is not legally documented on the Use Permit as a partner.

4. The Use Permit holder/partner must grow/harvest/maintain (keeping weed
free) his/her plot all 12 months.

5. Work must commence within 30 days of permit issuance.

6. Gardeners are obligated to plant fruits, vegetables and/or ornamental
plants.

7. Seasonal gardeners, e.g. “snowbirds”, summer “desert escapees” are
REQUIRED to SHARE their plot(s) with a partner who may maintain the
plot in the opposing seasons.

8. Mulch outside of plots is prohibited.

9. Gravel and decomposed granite are not permitted for use in garden or
tree plots. Gravel is only permitted for use in the Garden Center Two
walkways.

10. The disposal of trash and debris is the responsibility of each gardener.
Large green waste and general trash dumpsters are located strategically
throughout the facilities. Do not place debris in walk areas or leave debris
in wheelbarrows. Green waste items need to be placed in the green
waste  trash bins.

Agenda Item # 11d 
Page 6 of 20

Attachment 1



Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna Woods Village 
Garden Center Operating Rules 
October 4, 2022 
Page 5 

11. All walkways must be kept clear and wheelbarrows must be emptied and
returned to their proper storage areas. Gardeners using tools furnished by
GRF are responsible for the proper care, cleaning, return, and storage of
these tools to the tool sheds from which they were obtained.

12. Gardeners are permitted to plant within their assigned garden space only.
Planting in any common area, such as in the parking lot, within medians
and around structures, is not allowed unless approved by Recreation staff.

13. All items stored within the garden plot must be essential to gardening.
Pesticides of any kind may not be stored at the Garden Center. Items
such as wooden stakes, tomato cages, etc. must be kept in a neat and
orderly manner. Materials may not be stored against the  perimeter

fence of Garden Center. 

14. Gardeners are required to adhere and comply with all Garden Center
Operating Rules, Recreation Department Policy, GRF Governing
Documents, and all applicable laws. Failure to do so may result in
disciplinary action and/or loss of use permit.

H. Pets/Animals at the Garden Centers

1. Pets are not allowed at either Garden Center.

2. Do not feed wildlife in the Garden Centers.

I. Annual Fees

1. As part of the initial plot rental process, residents will be given a statement
with the amount due for their plot(s). All checks will be made payable to
GRF. The rental fees along with all applicable documentation must be
submitted to the Recreation Office. GRF may revoke the Use Permit of
any gardener who is 30 days delinquent in payment of his/her plot rental.

2. Plot rentals are for one calendar year and renewed annually.

3. The resident may begin working the plot upon receipt of plot rental fees
and must commence within 30 days of paying the plot rental fees.

J. Assignment of Garden Plots/Spaces

1. Garden plots are leased on an available basis and only one is allowed per
manor.

Agenda Item # 11d 
Page 7 of 20

Attachment 1



Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna Woods Village 
Garden Center Operating Rules 
October 4, 2022 
Page 6 

a. If needed, staff will prepare plot offered to a lessee, so that it is weed
free, rototilled (if free of gravel), all prior existing non-gardening
miscellaneous items removed, as well as any deteriorating 
structures, and has access to a functioning water source.  

2. Plots vary in location, actual size and previous improvements. Any fencing
around a plot must be maintained by the current Use Permit holder.

3. There is a limit of one garden plot and/or one tree plot per manor. Anyone
with more than one garden plot and/or more than one tree plot prior to
May 3, 2016 will be allowed to keep a maximum of two garden plots not to
exceed approximately 400 square feet and/or two tree plots.

4. When a Use Permit holder decides to relinquish his/her plot, he/she may
designate the registered partner as the new Use Permit holder in writing to
Garden Center administrative staff.

a. If the new designated Use Permit holder has another plot, he/she
must relinquish a matching number of plot(s) which will become
available to new garden plot applicants. 

5. Use Permits shall be personal to the gardener and shall not be assignable
to any other person and shall not pass on to any successors or assignees
unless the plot is shared by another resident who is a registered partner in
accordance with Section G.2. of these Operating Rules. If during the lease
agreement a resident moves or becomes deceased, the resident sharing
the plot wilmayl have an opportunity to become the Use Permit Holder if
they have been an approved partner for one or more years.

5.a.  If the plot is offered to a partner, It will it will be be offered in
the order in which the names of the partners appear on the 
current Use Permit.  

6. When a garden plot becomes vacant, all permanent structural
improvements made to the plot become the property of GRF. Other
gardeners are not allowed to remove items from the plot.

K. Watering/Irrigation

Any gardener watering their garden plot must be present at the Garden
Center in their plot the entire period of time the water is turned on, even if
an alternative irrigation system is in place.

1. All watering at the Garden Centers is subject to the El Toro Water District
rules and any other governing agency or municipality.

Agenda Item # 11d 
Page 8 of 20

Attachment 1



Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna Woods Village 
Garden Center Operating Rules 
October 4, 2022 
Page 7 

2. All hoses must be equipped with a positive self-closing shut-off hose
nozzle. The water faucet must be also turned off once watering is

complete. 

3. Staff shall be notified when faucets or valves are found to be leaking.
Water  shut off valves must be accessible from outside the plot. All fences
must have an opening at the faucet for easy access by Garden Center
staff.

4. Irrigation work that will require shutting off water to a garden area must be
done by a Garden Center staff member or a GRF approved technician.

5. If an alternative irrigation system is in place such as an automatic irrigation
or drip irrigation system, timers are required and must be set at the
lowest possible setting for appropriate watering of garden plot.

Batteries must be checked on a weekly basis to ensure they are 
working properly.  Gardeners must still be present while the 

systems are on. 

6. All gardeners are responsible for prudent, non-wasteful watering practices,
and for preventing water runoff from damaging adjacent plots.

7. No irrigation systems other than drip or soaker systems are permitted in a
plot.

8. Gardeners must keep the amount of time the water is turned on to as
short a time period as possible. Electronic, solar, mechanical and battery-

 operated water timers are allowed. 

L. General Gardening Information

1. Garden plots must be planted and maintained year-round.

2. Summer gardens must be planted by May 31 and must be cleaned up by
November 15.

3. Plot holders who do not actively garden during short periods (less than
one month) must plant a cover crop or cover the plot with plastic to
maintain the plot free of weeds. The registered partner may maintain the
plot in the plot holder’s absence.

Agenda Item # 11d 
Page 9 of 20

Attachment 1



Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna Woods Village 
Garden Center Operating Rules 
October 4, 2022 
Page 8 

4. GRF/Recreation reserves the right to prohibit or limit any plantings that are
not in the best interest of the Community or the Garden Centers.

5. All plants with invasive roots or plants that are larger than the plot size are
prohibited and must be removed or grown in a container.

a. For example - banana trees, mint, canna lilies, bird of paradise,
sugar cane and ginger

b. Trees may not be planted in garden plots including pots/planters.

6. Shading a neighbor’s garden plot with any plant or material is prohibited.
Tall plants/creeping vines are to must be planted along a south/south east
facing fence that is not attached to another plot or planted in the center of
the garden plot. These plantings must not exceed 6810 feet in heightmust
not grow taller than the plot fencing, onto the plot roof and/or exceed 9

feet in height.. 

M. Garden/Vegetable Plot Specifics

1. Staff must approve any fence or other structure prior to it being built
and follow GRF guidelines.

2. Each gardener is responsible for walkways within and around their
plots.  Walkways must be clear of obstacles. No intrusion of growing
material into the walkways.

3. No trees may be planted in any garden plots.

4. Plot holders may grow vegetables, fruits, herbs, ornamental plants  and
edible weeds in their plot.

5. Edible weeds must be harvested and not allowed to go to seed.

6. Plot holders must utilize at least 75% of the plot for planting. Plots are not
to be used to store materials/tools not associated with gardening or be
used as an entertaining area.

7. The plot soil must be maintained in an aerated state and no modification
or amendment to the soil may be added which will impede the future use
of the plot, including but not limited to gravel and vermiculite.

8. Plot holders may grow plants considered invasive, such as bamboo, mint
and Asian Yams, as long as it is in an above ground mobile container,
planter, etc. Invasive plants, such as bamboo, mint and Asian Yams and

Agenda Item # 11d 
Page 10 of 20

Attachment 1



Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna Woods Village 
Garden Center Operating Rules 
October 4, 2022 
Page 9 

trees already existing in the garden plot must be removed by the 
gardener.  

9. The following water-intensive crops are prohibited: rice and sugar cane.

10. Crops should be rotated.

11. Crops must be harvested and not left on the ground to rot and go to
waste.

12. Plot holders should grow a variety of plants and should never grow less
than two types of plants at any one time.

13. All plants, planters, planter boxes and trellises must be placed inside the
plot perimeter. Plants may not over hang into the walk way. The Garden
Center coordinator has the right to trim the excess plants over hanging
into the walkway without prior notification.

N. Shade House Spaces

1. Each bench space is approximately 16 square feet and will be assigned
on a one per manor basis.

2. The shade house will be kept locked at all times when it is not in use by
those with Use Permits. Keys will be issued to all shade house permit
holders. Keys must be returned to the Recreation Office when the Use
Permit is terminated.

3. All materials stored under the benches, such as pots, potting mixtures,
etc., must be kept in a neat and orderly condition and must be maintained
at least above the ground in order to reduce the opportunity for rodent
nest sites. Storage of materials not essential to shade house gardening
activities is prohibited.

4. Each shade house gardener is responsible for elimination of all debris and
weeds in their half of the walkways around their bench space.

O. Fruit Tree Areas

1. All new trees planted in tree plots in both Garden Centers will shall be
dwarf  and semidwarf fruit trees only and must obtain written approval in
advance by the Recreation Department. Trees that are not fruit trees
currently planted in both Garden Centers may be grandfathered in at

Agenda Item # 11d 
Page 11 of 20

Attachment 1



Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna Woods Village 
Garden Center Operating Rules 
October 4, 2022 
Page 10 

Garden Center staff discretion. Untended or unapproved trees may be 
removed by Garden Center staff after notification to tree plot Use Permit 
holders.  

2. In both Garden Centers, existing trees maximum height is 15 feet and
must have a minimum of three trees per 10’x10’ area but not exceed five
trees. 

3. Tree plots must utilize shared water spigots. Please remove your personal
hose after each use. Timers are not allowed.

4. Gardeners are reminded of the steep sloping grades that exist in the tree
area and lessees are to maintain safe walks, steps and slope retaining
walls at all times.

5. Gardeners are expected to prune and care for their trees so they do not
spread disease. Trees are not to grow over other plots or block walkways,
and may not rise more than 15 feet in pruned condition.

6. Tree plots must be kept free of weeds, fallen fruit, leaves, and flowers.
a. No vegetation plants are allowed in tree plots.

7. Structural fences are prohibited around tree plots. Temporary fencing may
be installed and is only permitted for  30 days during harvest time to

protect the produce from falling or being  taken  before ripeness. Failure to
remove the fence at staff’s request shall  result in the removal of the fence
at the expense of the Use Permit  Holder at the current chargeable service
rate

a. If the tree plot produces fruit year round, permanent fence approval
will need to be obtained from the Garden Center Administrative
office.

b. Temporary fencing guidelines are as follows:
i. 14 gauge Green flexible plastic meshwire fence  or flexible
plastic mesh with ¾” to 1” holes and six feet in height
ii. Up to 2 1/2” Metal stakesT or U Posts  not to exceed ¾
“diameter and six feet in height
iii. iii. Galvanized steel fence T-Post clips

iii.iv. Wooden boundary footings are permitted
iv.v. Concrete or other hard curing materials are prohibited. not
allowed

Sample of temporary fencing belowTemporary fence sample 
pictures below:  

Agenda Item # 11d 
Page 12 of 20

Attachment 1



Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna Woods Village 
Garden Center Operating Rules 
October 4, 2022 
Page 11 

P. Garden Product Policy

1. Any organic substance for use in the gardens should be approved by the
U.S. Department of Agriculture’s (USDA) National Organic Program or by
the Organics Materials Review Institute (OMRI). To see if a substance is
allowed in a community garden check the USDA National Organic
Program National List, Subpart G, 205.601 and 205.602 or the OMRI Web
site, www.omri.org

2. Organic Gardening: The form of agriculture that relies on techniques such
as crop rotation, green manure, compost and biological pest control.
Organic Gardening uses fertilizers and pesticides but excludes the use of
manufactured (synthetic) fertilizers, pesticides (including herbicides,
insecticides and fungicides), plant growth regulators, sludge and nano
materials.

The following table includes, but is not limited to, substances that are recommended and those 
that are not.   

Agenda Item # 11d 
Page 13 of 20

Attachment 1



Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna Woods Village 
Garden Center Operating Rules 
October 4, 2022 
Page 12 

PEST AND 
DISEASE  
CONTROL 

FERTILIZERS 

Recommended Not Recommended 

- bacillus thuringiensis(Bt)
- soap spray
- Horticulture pepper/onion spray - sulfur
- wood ashes
- sour milk solution
- lace wings
- dormant oils
- micro-cop or equivalent
- diatomaceous earth (DE)

- baking soda
- borax, boric acid - sluggo
- lady bugs

- tangle foot
- marigolds
- beneficial nematodes - netting
- Pyrethrum*

* Pyrethrin: It is a naturally occurring insect-
killing chemical taken from chrysanthemum
flowers. In the flowers, these bug-killers exist as
a mixture of six separate chemicals that
together are called pyrethrum or pyrethrins.
Pyrethrins (without piperonyl butoxide or other
enhancers) are permitted for use on organically
grown crops.

- Roundup is
forbidden
- rotenone -
pyrethrate, pyrethroids -
nicotine sulfate -
malathion
- diazinon
- sevin
- organophosphates
-
- Finale 
- Dursban
- organ chlorides
- chlorpyrifos

Recommended Not Recommended 

- cotton Seed - kelp
- compost
- manure

- ammonium sulfate -
ammonium nitrate -
muriate of potash -
superphosphates

Agenda Item # 11d 
Page 14 of 20

Attachment 1



Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna Woods Village 
Garden Center Operating Rules 
October 4, 2022 
Page 13 

- blood, bone, horn, and hoof meals - liquid
fish or

seaweed 
- fertilizers classed as “organic”

- highly
soluble
chemical fertilizer -
Ozmicote
- Non-organic
Miracle Grow

Agenda Item # 11d 
Page 15 of 20

Attachment 1



Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna Woods Village 
Garden Center Operating Rules 
October 4, 2022 
Page 14 

Q. Authority, Enforcement of Rules and Revoke of Use Permit(s)

1. VMS staff is authorized to send out compliance letters for Operating Rules
violations. Violations of the Garden Center Operating Rules, vandalism, theft, 
harassment or nuisance could result in filing a compliance report and/or 
subject to fines, suspension of GRF facilities and loss of Garden Center Use 
Permit.   
1. Garden CenterVMS staff are authorized to take disciplinary action against
a gardener found to be in violation of the Garden Center Operating Rules.
Violations at a GRF facility such as vandalism, theft, harassment or nuisance
could result in filing a Security compliance report and/or subject to fines and
suspension at GRF facilities.

2. Garden Center staff will make periodic checks of all garden plots/spaces
to ensure they are being properly cared for and operating rules are
adhered. If a safety issue exists, staff will take corrective action to
ensure the safety of the Garden Centers. Any costs incurred will be  at the
gardener’s expense.

3. If a gardener is found to be in violation of the Operating Rules, the
gardener shall be notified in writing of alleged violations and  required to

comply  within  a reasonable time from the date of the notice.  Failure to 
comply  within the allowable time may result in a hearing  for 
disciplinary action by  GRFtermination of the Use Permit.  Violation 

protocol is as follows: 
 Notice 1: Verbal outreach to resolve the violation;  
Notice 2: Letter outlining the violation and required deadline 

completion;    
 Notice 3: Notification of GRF hearingFinal violation notice and 

timeline before plot and garden rights     are revoked. 

4. Upon termination or revocation of a Use Permit, a gardener shall not
be entitled to any refund or apportionment of any fee paid to GRF for
any material planted, growing or otherwise located within the Garden
Centers or for any improvements made on the premises by the
gardener, and at the option of GRF, all or part of such material and
improvements shall become the property of GRF. Gardeners are
responsible for leaving plots weed and debris free and ready for the
next gardener. If not, GRF may charge for clean-up when a garden is
left in such a condition as to require clean up.

Agenda Item # 11d 
Page 16 of 20

Attachment 1



Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna Woods Village 
Garden Center Operating Rules 
October 4, 2022 
Page 15 

5. VIOLATIONS WARRANTING DISCIPLINARY ACTION THROUGH
SECURITY/OC SHERIFF (if warranted)

• Theft of tools and equipment

• Theft of produce and plants

• Vandalism of tools, equipment

• The use of foul language and offensive behavior including but not
limited to threats, intimidation, violence, racial/ethnic slurs and
sexual harassment (GRF Anti-Harassment Policy)

• Odors: this includes second-hand smoke (cigarettes, cigars
marijuana and vaping), etc. and is a violation of the GRF Anti-
Harassment Nuisance Policy. Receiving more than three combined
written warnings

• Failure to pay registration fee by the deadline

The Recreation Department reserves the right to review and adjust the operating rules 
to accommodate the needs of the community at any time. The Recreation Department 
also reserves the right to enter any plot at any time.  

Agenda Item # 11d 
Page 17 of 20

Attachment 1



Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna Woods Village 
Garden Center Operating Rules 
October 4, 2022 
Page 16 
 
 
 
 

Attachment 2 

 

Agenda Item # 11d 
Page 18 of 20



RESOLUTION 90-22-XX 
Garden Center Operating Rules 

WHEREAS, the Board has set polices and operating rules for usage of GRF facilities; 
and  

WHEREAS, the Recreation and Special Events Department oversees the use of 
facilities; and  

WHEREAS, the Department is responsible for ensuring that safety and compliance 
procedures are followed, protect facilities and enforce policy and operating rules; 
and 

WHEREAS, the proposed amendments improve the understandability of the policies 
and procedures and facilitates implementation by staff; and 

WHEREAS, on September 8, 2022, the Community Activities Committee approved 
the amended Garden Center operating rules; and 

WHEREAS, that this resolution supersedes and cancels resolution 90-16-55, adopted 
December 6, 2016;  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, November 1, 2022 the Board of Directors of 
this Corporation hereby adopts the amended Garden Center operating rules; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this corporation are hereby 
authorized to carry out this resolution as written.   

August Initial Notification - Revised September
Should the Board endorse the proposed revisions, Staff recommends that a motion be 
made and seconded to accept the resolution and allow discussion to ensure that the 
resolution reads to the satisfaction of the Board.  Staff then recommends that a Board 
Member postpones the resolution to the next available Board Meeting no less than 28-
days from the postponement to comply with Civil Code 
§4360.

Attachment 3

Agenda Item # 11d 
Page 19 of 20



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY

Agenda Item # 11d 
Page 20 of 20



Treasurer’s Report for October 4, 2022 Board Meeting 

Slide 1 – This first chart includes all revenues and expenses including 
those designated for reserves, including investment income, the 
transfer facility fees and the GRF reserve portion of the HOA fees. It 
also includes the contingency portion of the HOA fees. 

Through the reporting period of August 31, 2022, GRF had net revenue 
of $2,946K, with total revenue of $32,079K and total expense of 
$29,133K. GRF was better than budget by $1,430K with total expenses 
coming in $1,952 better than anticipated. The favorable results seen in 
expenses were partially offset by lower revenues of ($522K). These 
revenues are significantly impacted by the unrealized investment losses 
this year. 

Slide 2 – The next chart displays the Operating Fund, which excludes 
the non-operating revenues I mentioned before and depreciation. This 
report shows a favorable variance of $1,813K through the reporting 
period, with expense better than budget by $1,949K offset by revenue 
worse than budget by ($136K). 

Slide 3 – This slide reflects the current market value of the GRF 
Discretionary Investment Portfolio and the original market value at 
time of inception. Year to date, the market value has decreased by 
($1,120K), or (5.7%) and ($621K), or (3.3%) since inception in 2019. 

Agenda Item #14a(1) 
Page 1 of 18



Slide 4 – In Slide 1, I mentioned the impact of the current years 
unrealized Investment Losses. The current market value of the GRF 
Portfolio is $18,410K compared to the value at inception of 19,031K. 
Year to date, the market value has decreased by ($1,120K), or (5.7%) 
and ($621K), or (3.3%) since inception in 2019. In August, the value 
decreased by ($345K). Again, our investment advisor recommends no 
change to our strategic investment. 

Slide 5 – Now, back to the Operating Fund, which has the more 
significant impact on HOA assessments. This slide shows our most 
significant operating only variances by category with green bars 
representing favorable variances and orange bars representing 
unfavorable items.   

Favorable. Overall, we had favorable variances in: 

• Employee Compensation and related variance of $1,476K,
variance was primarily due to vacancies in General Services for
bus driver and janitorial positions, and in Security Services due to
vacancies for Security Officers for which recruitment is in
progress. In addition, vacancies in Recreation and Maintenance &
Construction furthered the variance.

• Outside Services of $256K, variance was due to a late start in
evening janitorial services for GRF facilities as some clubhouses
were closed or only open with reservations at the beginning of
the year due to staffing. Less vehicle repairs and carwashes were
utilized at the beginning of the year as less company cars were
driven due to staff vacancies. In addition, Lyft usage has been
lower than anticipated. To a lesser extent, landscaping programs
began in August, although budgeted evenly throughout the year.

Agenda Item #14a(1) 
Page 2 of 18



 
• Golf revenue of $193K due to higher use of golf facilities. Golf 

gained popularity through the pandemic when indoor activities 
were limited and demand has remained strong into 2022. 
 

• Merchandise Sales of $154K, due to increased sales of golf clubs 
and other items at the Golf Pro shop and higher sales of fuel and 
oil sales to AgeWell due to increased costs. GRF sells fuel to 
AgeWell at cost and charges an administrative fee, offset found in 
merchandise sales.  

 
Unfavorable.  Some offsetting unfavorable variance included: 

• Broadband Services unfavorable variance of ($367K) due to lower 
high-speed internet revenue sharing than budgeted. The budget 
anticipated contract re-negotiation in which GRF would be 
awarded a higher revenue sharing percentage, which did not 
occur. The variance was furthered by less ad insertion as a result 
of ongoing COVID-19 pandemic causing advertisers to spend less. 
 

• Utilities & Telephone unfavorable variance of ($231K), due to 
higher water expense for the golf course, as a result of 74% less 
rainfall than 3-year average used for budgeting and rising 
electricity and natural gas costs amongst all departments. 
Providing a small offset: telephone expenses are lower than 
budget due to a re-negotiated contract with telephone provider, 
and trash expenses are lower due to a change in trash provider. 

Slide 6 – This slide shows our sources of revenue other than the 
assessments, such as fees and rentals. To date, we have received just 
over $6,595K of non-assessment operating revenue, as shown on this 

Agenda Item #14a(1) 
Page 3 of 18



pie chart.  By category, we can see that our largest revenue is 
Broadband Services (i.e. set top boxes, internet, ad insertion, and 
premium channels), followed by Golf Revenue, Merchandise Sales, and 
Clubhouse Rentals & Event Fees. Other revenue, which includes 
Additional occupancy fees, Equestrian fees, fees for classes, 
Sponsorship fees, and RV storage fees among others, amount to 11%.  
These revenues offset costs and help keep assessments down. 

Slide 7 – The chart shows, as usual, our largest Operating expense is 
compensation, followed by cable and programming expenses. Of the 
$25.6M, excluding depreciation, these two categories account for 71% 
of the total operating expense. Utilities & Fuel, Insurance, Professional 
and Legal, and Outside Services, etc. make up the remaining 29%.  If 
you consider that cable and programming are offset by broadband 
revenue, compensation accounts for 67% of the net expense, while 
insurance, utilities, and outside services account for 33% of the net 
operating expense. 

Slide 8 – The reserve and restricted funds adjusted balances are shown 
here.   

• Starting with the 1st column on the left, reserve funds have a 
combined ending balance of: $34.4M; restricted fund balances 
have an ending balance of $2.7M.  Included in this total are 
contributions received this year through assessments, trust 
facilities fees, and investment earnings. 

• The 2nd column shows the work in progress of $2.7M for reserve 
and $83K for restricted, reflecting the amounts paid for projects 
not yet completed. 

• The 3rd column represents the resulting “adjusted” fund balances 
of $31.8M for reserve and $2.6M for restricted. 

Agenda Item #14a(1) 
Page 4 of 18



Slide 9 – We have a slide here to show resale History from 2020-2022.  
Community-wide sales total 665 through August 31, 2022.  Most of 
these transactions generate the Trust Facilities Fee (transfer fee), used 
as a source of revenue for our reserves. Note: the new transfer fee of 
$7,500 went into effect for purchase contracts entered into after 
January 1, 2022 or closing after March 31, 2022.  

Slide 10 –The listing on this slide gives you an idea where the reserve 
money is committed. Of the $15.5M appropriated by the Board for 
various projects and equipment purchases, the remaining 
encumbrances against our reserve funds is $12M, primarily for 
renovation projects.  Restricted funds had total appropriations of $148K 
and remaining encumbrances of $58K, for the moving of bus benches.  

Slide 11 – We compare our “adjusted” fund balances to historical 
balances for the past five years on this next chart, showing that GRF has 
averaged $25 million in reserve funds and $1.3 million in contingency 
funds.  

Agenda Item #14a(1) 
Page 5 of 18



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY

Agenda Item #14a(1) 
Page 6 of 18



GR
F 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l R
ep

or
t

As
 o

f A
ug

us
t 3

1,
 2

02
2 IN

CO
M

E 
ST

AT
EM

EN
T

(in
 th

ou
sa

nd
s)

AC
TU

AL
BU

D
G

ET
VA

RI
AN

CE
 

B/
(W

)

As
se

ss
m

en
t R

ev
en

ue
$2

2,
16

2
$2

2,
16

2
$0

N
on

-A
ss

es
sm

en
t R

ev
en

ue
$9

,9
17

$1
0,

43
9

($
52

2)

To
ta

l R
ev

en
ue

$3
2,

07
9

$3
2,

60
1

($
52

2)

To
ta

l E
xp

en
se

$2
9,

13
3

$3
1,

08
5

$1
,9

52

N
et

 R
ev

en
ue

/(
Ex

pe
ns

e)
$2

,9
46

$1
,5

16
$1

,4
30

1
Ag

en
da

 It
em

 #
14

a(
1)

 
Pa

ge
 7

 o
f 1

8



GR
F 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l R
ep

or
t

As
 o

f A
ug

us
t 3

1,
 2

02
2 O
PE

RA
TI

N
G

 O
N

LY
 IN

CO
M

E 
ST

AT
EM

EN
T

(in
 th

ou
sa

nd
s)

AC
TU

AL
BU

D
G

ET
VA

RI
AN

CE
 

B/
(W

)

As
se

ss
m

en
t R

ev
en

ue
$1

9,
92

0
$1

9,
92

0
$0

N
on

-A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

Re
ve

nu
e

$6
,5

94
$6

,7
30

($
13

6)

To
ta

l R
ev

en
ue

$2
6,

51
4

$2
6,

65
0

($
13

6)

To
ta

l E
xp

en
se

1
$2

5,
60

7
$2

7,
55

6
$1

,9
49

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Su

rp
lu

s/
 

(D
ef

ic
it)

$9
07

($
90

6)
$1

,8
13

1)
ex

cl
ud

es
 d

ep
re

ci
at

io
n

2
Ag

en
da

 It
em

 #
14

a(
1)

 
Pa

ge
 8

 o
f 1

8



GR
F 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l R
ep

or
t

As
 o

f A
ug

us
t 3

1,
 2

02
2

GR
F 

PO
RT

FO
LI

O
 V

AL
U

E 
H

IS
TO

RY
Di

sc
re

tio
na

ry
 In

ve
st

m
en

ts
(in

 T
ho

us
an

ds
)

Va
lu

e
An

nu
al

 
Ch

an
ge

 $
An

nu
al

 
Ch

an
ge

 %
In

ce
pt

io
n 

Ch
an

ge
 %

De
ce

m
be

r 2
01

9
$1

9,
03

1

De
ce

m
be

r 2
02

0
$1

9,
82

2
$7

91
4.

2%
4.

2%

De
ce

m
be

r 2
02

1
$1

9,
53

0
($

29
2)

(1
.5

%
)

2.
6%

Au
gu

st
 2

02
2

$1
8,

41
0

($
1,

12
0)

(5
.7

%
)

(3
.3

%
)

Su
m

m
ar

y*
($

62
1)

(3
.3

%
)

3
Ag

en
da

 It
em

 #
14

a(
1)

 
Pa

ge
 9

 o
f 1

8



GR
F 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l R
ep

or
t

As
 o

f A
ug

us
t 3

1,
 2

02
2

GR
F 

RE
SE

RV
E 

CO
M

PO
SI

TI
O

N
(in

 T
ho

us
an

ds
)

Va
lu

e

Po
rt

fo
lio

$1
8,

41
0

Ca
sh

$5
79

N
on

-D
is

cr
et

io
na

ry
 

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

$1
4,

85
8

To
ta

l
$3

3,
84

7

Pa
ya

bl
es

($
2,

08
7)

N
et

 R
es

er
ve

s B
al

an
ce

$3
1,

76
0

4
Ag

en
da

 It
em

 #
14

a(
1)

 
Pa

ge
 1

0 
of

 1
8



GR
F 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l R
ep

or
t

As
 o

f A
ug

us
t 3

1,
 2

02
2

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
O

nl
y

5

($
36

7K
)

($
23

1K
)

$1
,4

76
K

$2
56

K

$1
93

K

$1
54

K

($
50

0K
)

$0
$5

00
,0

00
$1

,0
00

,0
00

$1
,5

00
,0

00
$2

,0
00

,0
00

Em
pl

oy
ee

 C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
&

 R
el

at
ed

 E
xp

en
se

O
ut

si
de

 S
er

vi
ce

s E
xp

en
se

G
ol

f G
re

en
 F

ee
s

M
er

ch
an

di
se

 S
al

es

Br
oa

db
an

d 
Se

rv
ic

es
 R

ev
en

ue

U
til

iti
es

 &
 T

el
ep

ho
ne

 E
xp

en
se

U
nf

av
or

ab
le

Fa
vo

ra
bl

e

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 #

14
a(

1)
 

Pa
ge

 1
1 

of
 1

8



GR
F 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l R
ep

or
t

As
 o

f A
ug

us
t 3

1,
 2

02
2

6

N
on

-a
ss

es
sm

en
t O

pe
ra

tin
g

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 #

14
a(

1)
 

Pa
ge

 1
2 

of
 1

8



GR
F 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l R
ep

or
t

As
 o

f A
ug

us
t 3

1,
 2

02
2

7

Ex
pe

ns
es

1

$2
5,

60
6,

66
0

1)
 e

xc
lu

de
s 

de
pr

ec
ia

tio
n

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 #

14
a(

1)
 

Pa
ge

 1
3 

of
 1

8



GR
F 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l R
ep

or
t

As
 o

f A
ug

us
t 3

1,
 2

02
2

8

RE
SE

RV
E 

FU
N

D
 B

AL
AN

CE
S

(in
 th

ou
sa

nd
s)

EN
D

IN
G

BA
LA

N
CE

W
O

RK
 IN

 
PR

O
G

RE
SS

AD
JU

ST
ED

 
BA

LA
N

CE
S

Eq
ui

pm
en

t F
un

d
$5

,7
47

$1
,2

05
$4

,5
42

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s F
un

d
20

,2
93

1,
46

8
18

,8
25

Tr
us

t F
ac

ili
tie

s F
ee

 F
un

d
8,

39
3

0
8,

39
3

TO
TA

L
$3

4,
43

3
$2

,6
73

$3
1,

76
0

RE
ST

RI
CT

ED
 F

U
N

D
 B

AL
AN

CE
S

(in
 th

ou
sa

nd
s)

EN
D

IN
G

BA
LA

N
CE

W
O

RK
 IN

 
PR

O
G

RE
SS

AD
JU

ST
ED

 
BA

LA
N

CE
S

Co
nt

in
ge

nc
y 

Fu
nd

$2
,7

00
$8

3
$2

,6
17

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 #

14
a(

1)
 

Pa
ge

 1
4 

of
 1

8



GR
F 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l R
ep

or
t

As
 o

f A
ug

us
t 3

1,
 2

02
2

9

02040608010
0

12
0

N
O

. O
F

RE
SA

LE
S

AV
G

. R
ES

AL
E 

PR
IC

E

YT
D 

20
20

41
9

$3
30

,5
27

YT
D

20
21

66
1

$3
51

,7
38

YT
D

20
22

66
5

$4
13

,5
11

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 #

14
a(

1)
 

Pa
ge

 1
5 

of
 1

8



GR
F 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l R
ep

or
t

As
 o

f A
ug

us
t 3

1,
 2

02
2

10

FU
N

D
 E

N
CU

M
BR

AN
CE

S
(in

 th
ou

sa
nd

s)

RE
SE

RV
E 

FU
N

DS
 (E

Q
F 

+ 
FC

F)
RE

ST
RI

CT
ED

 F
U

N
D 

(C
N

F)

To
ta

l A
pp

ro
pr

ia
tio

ns
Re

m
ai

ni
ng

 
En

cu
m

br
an

ce
To

ta
l A

pp
ro

pr
ia

tio
ns

Re
m

ai
ni

ng
 

En
cu

m
br

an
ce

Aq
ua

tic
s &

 F
itn

es
s

$6
7

$5
4

$0
$0

Br
oa

db
an

d 
Se

rv
ic

es
63

1
45

5
50

 
0

Cl
ub

ho
us

es
2,

46
3

1,
51

5
0

0

Co
m

pu
te

rs
4,

76
0

3,
94

6
0

0

Co
m

m
un

ity
 C

en
te

r
27

9
14

3
0

0

En
er

gy
 P

ro
je

ct
s

25
0 

21
5

0
0

Go
lf 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s
80

9
75

0
0

0

La
nd

sc
ap

in
g

69
7 

54
6

0
0

O
th

er
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t
28

0 
27

8
0

0

O
th

er
 G

RF
 F

ac
ili

tie
s

1,
57

4
1,

18
0

98
58

Pa
vi

ng
90

4
70

6
0

0

Se
cu

rit
y

46
8

38
0

0
0

Ve
hi

cl
es

2,
33

9
1,

84
4

0
0

TO
TA

L
$1

5,
52

1
$1

2,
01

2
$1

48
$5

8
Ag

en
da

 It
em

 #
14

a(
1)

 
Pa

ge
 1

6 
of

 1
8



GR
F 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l R
ep

or
t

As
 o

f A
ug

us
t 3

1,
 2

02
2

11
Ag

en
da

 It
em

 #
14

a(
1)

 
Pa

ge
 1

7 
of

 1
8



TH
IS

 P
AG

E 
LE

FT
 B

LA
N

K 
IN

TE
N

TI
O

N
AL

LY

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 #

14
a(

1)
 

Pa
ge

 1
8 

of
 1

8



 
 
 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
REPORT OF THE REGULAR OPEN SESSION 

 

Wednesday, August 17, 2022 – 1:30 p.m. 
Hybrid Meeting 

DIRECTORS PRESENT: Jim Hopkins – Chair, Elsie Addington, Debbie Dotson, Mark Laws, 
Donna Rane-Szostak, Lenny Ross (Alternate for Azar), Diane Casey, 
Sue Stephens (Alternate for Al) 

DIRECTORS ABSENT: Azar Asgari, Al Amado 

ADVISORS PRESENT: Rosemarie DiLorenzo 

STAFF PRESENT: Jose Campos, Pam Jensen, Brian Gruner, Erika Hernandez 
 

OTHERS PRESENT: GRF – Bunny Carpenter, Egon Garthoffner, Juanita Skillman, Yvonne 
Horton, Reza Karimi 

 
United – Advisor: Richard “Dick” Rader 

 
Call to Order 
Director James Hopkins chaired the meeting and was called to order at 1:33 p.m. 

 
Acknowledgement of Media 
The meeting was streamed through Granicus and made available via Zoom for members of the 
community to participate virtually. 

 
Approval of Meeting Agenda 
A motion was made and carried unanimously to approve the agenda as presented. 

 
Approval of the Regular Meeting Report of June 15, 2022 
A motion was made and carried unanimously to approve the committee report as presented. 

 
Chair Remarks 
None. 

 
Member Comments (Items Not on the Agenda) 
A member commented on the Facility Transfer Fee and requested that the board consider 
reimbursing one of the transfer fees paid for the second unit purchase. The committee suggested 
that this item be discussed during a board meeting as it does not pertain to Finance. 

Agenda Item #14a(2) 
Page 1 of 2



James Hopkins (Aug 23, 2022 15:44 PDT) 

Report of GRF Finance Committee Regular Open Meeting 
August 17, 2022 
Page 2 of 2 

Department Head Update 
Jose Campos, Assistant Director of Financials Services, briefly summarized the GRF 2023 
Business Plan upcoming agenda. 

Review Preliminary Financial Statements dated July 31, 2022 
The committee reviewed the financial statements dated July 31, 2022. Questions were addressed. 

SageView Presentation 
Dan Quirk, Senior Investment Advisor from SageView Advisory Group, presented a summary of 
the current GRF investment portfolio. Discussion ensued and various questions were asked by 
Directors. No further action. 

2021 Operating Surplus 
Jose Campos presented a staff report recommending the Board approve a $964,180 transfer 
from the Operating Fund to the Contingency Fund. In accordance with California Civil Code, a 
Common Interest Development shall not retain significant operating surplus. A motion was 
made and seconded to approve the recommendation. The motion passed by unanimous 
decision. 

Endorsement from Standing Committees 
Communities Activity Committee – Golf Fees. Jose Campos presented a staff report provided by 
CAC recommending the board to approve the proposed schedule of Golf fees for year 2023. A 
motion was made to accept and endorse this recommendation and present at the next Board 
meeting. The motion passed by unanimous decision. 

Future Agenda Items 
None. 

Committee Member Comments 
None. 

Date of Next Meeting 
Wednesday, October 19, 2022 at 1:30 p.m. 

Recess to Closed Session 
The meeting recessed to closed session at 3:25 p.m. 

James Hopkins, Chair 

Agenda Item #14a(2) 
Page 2 of 2



Agenda Item #14b 
Page 1 of 2



Agenda Item #14b 
Page 2 of 2



   
 

   
 

OPEN MEETING  
 

REPORT OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE GOLDEN RAIN FOUNDATION 
COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES COMMITTEE  

 

Thursday, September 8, 2022 – 1:30 p.m.  
Board Room/Virtual Meeting 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT:                Yvonne Horton, Chair, Elsie Addington, Maggie  
     Blackwell, Annie McCary, Diane Casey, Cush Bhada,  
     Dennis Boudreau, Ajit Gidwani 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:                 Ryna Rothberg 
 
OTHERS PRESENT:                   Bunny Carpenter, Juanita Skillman, Joan Milliman,  
     Debbie Dotson 
 
STAFF PRESENT:                       Brian Gruner, Steve Hormuth, Jennifer Murphy, Jackie  
     Chioni 
 
Call to Order   
 
Chair Horton called the meeting to order at 1:34 p.m.  
 
Acknowledgement of Media  
 
There was no press present.  
 
Approval of Agenda  
 
Chair Horton made a motion to approve the agenda with the addition under Reports as 
Donation of Drum Sander for Clubhouse 4 Woodshop and under Items for Discussion and 
Consideration as Garden Center Operating Rules, no second. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Approval of Committee Report for August 11, 2022 
 
Director Bhada made a motion to approve the report, Director Casey seconded. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Chair’s Remarks  
 
Chair Horton welcomed the audience and stated an orderly meeting is expected with 
respectful behavior. 
 

Agenda Item # 14c 
Page 1 of 6



Report of GRF Community Activities Committee Regular Meeting 
September 8, 2022  

Page 2 

Report of the Recreation and Special Events Director 

Mr. Gruner stated staff levels are improving with nine new employees and four additional 
new employees in the onboarding process. More interviews are schedule next week. These 
improvements allow the expansion of services such as extended hours at Clubhouse 5 and 
7 and table tennis in the Community Center. Additional services will be announced in the 
eblast this Friday. Mr. Gruner stated the following facility updates: the Garden Center 
volunteer program is very successful with a total of 16 volunteers; a worm farming class will 
be held on October 14; the hours at the Performing Arts Center will be expanded soon; the 
aerification process for the golf course will begin next week; poolside food delivery service 
at Pool 2 began in August and has been well received with approximately five deliveries per 
day; the Library had 3952 items in circulation which is an increase from last month and 811 
volunteer hours were reported. 

Mr. Gruner presented the Premier Aquatics slide show which reports 42 first aid assists, 13 
water rescues and 1 major incident. Mr. Gruner thanked Premier Aquatics for their swift 
response to the needs of our resident swimmers. 

Mr. Gruner reported the following past events: Kids Splash Days at Pool 2; Queen Nation 
at the Performing Arts Center with 715 attendees; Space Oddity, a tribute to David Bowie 
was moved inside the Performing Arts Center due to the heat with approximately 400 
attendees; the Garden Center hosted a composting event in August at Clubhouse 2. 

Ms. Murphy stated the following upcoming events: Grandparents’ Fun Day will be hosted at 
Clubhouse 5 on September 10 with tickets on sale at the Clubhouse 5 office for $5 per child 
over the age of 2; Ronstadt Revival, Tribute to a Legend will perform at the Performing Arts 
Center on September 17 at 7 p.m.; the free movie at the Performing Arts Center on 
September 19 at 2 p.m. will be West Side Story; the Italian buffet monthly dinner will be 
hosted on September 29 at Clubhouse 5 with tickets on sale at the Clubhouse 5 office for 
$25 each; Who’s Zepplin will perform at the Performing Arts Center on Saturday, October 1 
at 7 p.m. 

Chair Horton stated kudos were given from those who host the Trading Post on Village TV 
to the Recreation Department for moving the Space Oddity concert into the Performing Arts 
Center. 

Member Comments (Items Not on the Agenda) 

Members were called to speak regarding the following: Village Musicians Studio Music club 
on wait list for new clubs and the proposed club project; club exclusion of players; clubs 
bypassing the wait list; reopening of Clubhouse 7; residents allowed to set up rooms with 
reservations; trail and riding program reinstatement after COVID; request for Equestrian Ad 
Hoc Committee minutes. 

Agenda Item # 14c 
Page 2 of 6



Report of GRF Community Activities Committee Regular Meeting 
September 8, 2022  

Page 3 
 

  

 

   
 

Mr. Gruner stated rollovers take precedence when scheduling rooms as facilities reopen 
and no club has bypassed the wait list. Chair Horton stated staff is addressing the 
proposed club project. 
 
Chair Horton stated the riding lesson program is reinstated and the wait list is extensive as 
only a few horses are compatible with this program. She stated a records request may be 
made for the Equestrian Ad Hoc Committee minutes. 
 
CONSENT 
Director Addington made a motion to approve the consent calendar, Director McCary 
seconded. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
REPORTS  
 
Golf Greens Committee Update - Director Blackwell stated the following updates: the 
driving range will use the batting cage from the Par 3 course during the construction 
project; weeds on the golf course are being addressed progressively; merchandise 
replaced in pro shop has improved sales; new scorecards were created with additional Par 
5 options resulting in a better evaluation of the course and better golf play; new staff is 
doing a great job; the perimeter path is being monitored as it should not allow access for 
golf carts which damage the greens due to misuse; reservation violations are considerably 
lower with the new measures implemented; new shotgun rule has provided better safety; 
threesomes are now allowed during club times; a tournament has been approved; new 
rules for cancellations have been implemented; the flashing light used for street crossing by 
the maintenance yard has been fixed to allow for better safety; Golf Genius will not work for 
9-hole club at this time. Director Blackwell thanked the Greens Committee as they have 
been working well together to ensure a safer, better golf experience. 
 
Chair Horton thanked Director Blackwell for this update. 
 
Donation of Drum Sander for Clubhouse 4 Woodshop - Chair Horton stated the 
recommendation of the donation of a drum sander for Clubhouse 4 woodshop. 
 
Director McCary made a motion to approve the donation, Director Casey seconded. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION 
 
Garden Center Fees – Mr. Hormuth, Financial Services Director, presented the staff 
recommendation to approve the proposed Schedule of Garden Center Rental Fees with an 
effective date of January 1, 2023. 

Agenda Item # 14c 
Page 3 of 6



Report of GRF Community Activities Committee Regular Meeting 
September 8, 2022  

Page 4 
 

  

 

   
 

 
Discussion ensued. 
 
Member was called to speak regarding the following: fees raised by 25%; generating 
revenue from missed revenue opportunities.  
 
Director Addington made a motion to accept staff recommendation to approve the 
proposed Schedule of Garden Center Rental Fees with an effective date of January 1, 
2023, Director Blackwell seconded. 
 
Motion passed 4-2-1 (Director Blackwell and Director Casey voted no; Director Rothberg 
was absent). 
 
African American Heritage Club Request for Rollover Exception - Ms. Murphy stated 
the request for African American Heritage Club’s request for an exception to the  
Permanent/Rollover Reservation Policy for a Juneteenth automatic annual rollover. 
 
Discussion ensued. 
 
Chair Horton asked if any exceptions from the committee to direct the African American 
Heritage Club to work with Ms. Murphy and clubs with existing reservations at all 
clubhouses and to direct the African American Heritage Club to present this exception to 
CAC in 2023 for the 2024 calendar year.  
 
No exceptions were stated from the CAC committee. 
 
Garden Center Operating Rules - Mr. Gruner stated the change adding the limit of 9 feet 
under section L.6. 
 
Director Addington inquired as to a reference change under section J.5. which should state 
D1. Staff was directed to implement the change. 
 
Member was called to speak regarding the following: tree cut by an unknown individual and 
allowance of a temporary fence to be kept up indefinitely on a tree plot. 
 
Director Addington made a motion to approve the Garden Center operating rules as 
presented, Director Casey seconded. 
 
Discussion ensued. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS  
 

Agenda Item # 14c 
Page 4 of 6



Report of GRF Community Activities Committee Regular Meeting 
September 8, 2022  

Page 5 
 

  

 

   
 

Equestrian Center Operating Rules – Staff was directed to keep this item under Items for 
Future Agendas. 
 
Performing Arts Center Rental Fees – Staff was directed to keep this item under Items 
for Future Agendas. 
 
Poster Policy Review – Staff was directed to keep this item under Items for Future 
Agendas. 
 
CONCLUDING BUSINESS  
 
Committee Member Comments  
Director Casey stated good meeting. 
Advisor Gidwani thanked staff for being on top of things within the Village. 
 
Date of Next Meeting  
 
The next regular meeting of the GRF Community Activities Committee will be held both in 
the board room and virtually via the Zoom platform at 1:30 p.m. on Thursday, October 13, 
2022.  
 
Adjournment 
  
There being no further business, the Chair adjourned the meeting at 3:17 p.m.    

      

___Yvonne Horton___ 
 

Yvonne Horton, Chair 

Agenda Item # 14c 
Page 5 of 6



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY

Agenda Item # 14c 
Page 6 of 6



 

 

OPEN MEETING 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE GOLDEN RAIN FOUNDATION 
LANDSCAPE COMMITTEE 

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 14, 2022 – 1:30 P.M. 
BOARD ROOM / VIRTUAL MEETING 

Laguna Woods Village Community Center 
24351 El Toro Road 

 
REPORT 

 
COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT: Chair – Juanita Skillman, Reza Karimi, Ira Lewis, 
Diane Casey, Maggie Blackwell 

 
COMMITTEE MEMBERS ABSENT: Annie McCary 

 
OTHERS PRESENT: Bunny Carpenter, Yvonne Horton, Joanna Kipper (Biologist from 
Chambers Group, inc.) 

 
ADVISORS PRESENT: Lynn Jarrett 

 
STAFF PRESENT: Kurt Wiemann, Jayanna Abolmoloki 

 
1. Call Meeting to Order 

Chair Skillman called the meeting to order at 1:32 p.m. 
 

2. Acknowledgment of Media 
No press was present. 

 
3. Approval of the Agenda 

Director Karimi made a motion to approve the agenda. Director Lewis seconded. 
The committee was in unanimous support. 

 
4. Approval of the Meeting Report for June 6, 2022 

The report was approved without objections. 
 

5. Committee Chair Remarks 
Chair Skillman addressed the audience by reminding them that the GRF 
Landscape Committee typically highlights items of particular interest. 

Agenda Item #14d 
Page 1 of 4



6. Department Head Update
6a. Irrigation Control Project Update
Mr. Wiemann stated that GRF owns the irrigation controls for the entire
community and informed the audience that the current system is almost 25 years
old. Mr. Wiemann updated the committee by stating that he is waiting on the first
set of controllers to be delivered. Mr. Wiemann also reminded the committee that
the new system is eligible for rebates.

Members made comments and asked questions.

Reports 

7. Update on the Creek (Presentation)
Mr. Wiemann introduced Joanna Kipper, the Biologist working with Landscape
Services to preserve Aliso Creek. Ms. Kipper presented a slide show containing
images and information regarding the creek.

Members made comments and asked questions.

8. Drought Tolerant Plants (Presentation)
Mr. Wiemann discussed the many drought tolerant plants depicted in the slide
show presented. Mr. Wiemann also shared that Landscape Services will be
replanting the Gate 1 area as a pilot to display multiple drought tolerant plants.
Mr. Wiemann stated that United Mutual will soon have a passive park planted full
of drought tolerant plants, and it will be pet-friendly. Mr. Wiemann recommends
that residents purchase their drought tolerant plants from nurseries, in lieu of big
box stores.

Members made comments and asked questions.

Items for Discussion and Consideration 

9. Member Comments (Items Not on the Agenda)
Several members made comments and asked questions. Topics included:

• The history of Conservators of the Creek
• Request to speak at a Fish, Game, and Wildlife Meeting
• Willow trees near Aliso Creek
• Request to re-plant butterfly-friendly bushes near Aliso Creek
• Informational brochures available at the History Center

10. Response to Members Comments
Kurt Wiemann and Joanna Kipper both responded to member comments.

Agenda Item #14d 
Page 2 of 4



 

 
 
Juanita Skillman (Sep 26, 2022 11:19 PDT)  

 

Concluding Business: 
 

11. Committee Member Comments 
Advisor Lynn Jarrett stated that she appreciates the presentations shared. She 
also stated that Bob Merget’s previous presentation given should be turned into a 
YouTube video. 

 
Director Blackwell stated that What’s Up in the Village should soon contain 
information on drought tolerant plants. 

 
Director Casey commented that she is doing good things with the United Tree Ad 
Hoc Committee. 

 
Director Lewis stated he is happy that this information is getting to the public. 

Director Karimi appreciates what Landscape Services is doing in Aliso Creek. 

12. Date of Next Meeting – Wednesday, December 14, 2022 at 1:30 p.m. 
 

13. Recess for Special Closed Session at 3:18 p.m. 
 
 

Juanita Skillman, Chair 

Agenda Item #14d 
Page 3 of 4



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY

Agenda Item #14d 
Page 4 of 4



Agenda Item #14e 
Page 1 of 4



Agenda Item #14e 
Page 2 of 4



Agenda Item #14e 
Page 3 of 4



Agenda Item #14e 
Page 4 of 4



Agenda Item #14e(1) 
Page 1 of 4



Agenda Item #14e(1) 
Page 2 of 4



Agenda Item #14e(1) 
Page 3 of 4



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY

Agenda Item #14e(1) 
Page 4 of 4



Agenda Item # 14f 
Page 1 of 4



Agenda Item # 14f 
Page 2 of 4



Agenda Item # 14f 
Page 3 of 4



Agenda Item # 14f 
Page 4 of 4



Agenda Item #14g 
Page 1 of 4



Agenda Item #14g 
Page 2 of 4



Agenda Item #14g 
Page 3 of 4



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY

Agenda Item #14g 
Page 4 of 4



 
 

REPORT OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
GOLDEN RAIN FOUNDATION OF LAGUNA WOODS 
SECURITY AND COMMUNITY ACCESS COMMITTEE 

 
The Hybrid Model Meeting of the Security and Community Access Committee was 
held on Monday, August 29, 2022 at 1:30 p.m. 24351 El Toro Road, Laguna Woods, 
California. 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Don Tibbetts, Anthony Liberatore, Reza Karimi, Annie McCary 

OTHERS PRESENT: Bunny Carpenter, Elsie Addington, Juanita Skillman, Cris Prince 

STAFF PRESENT: Eric Nuñez, Tom Siviglia, Jayanna Abolmoloki, Cody DeLeon 

CALL TO ORDER 
Don Tibbetts, Chair, called the meeting to order at 1:32 p.m. 

 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF PRESS 
Media was not present. 

 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
By way of consensus, the Committee approved the agenda without requested changes. 

 
APPROVAL OF MEETING REPORT 
By way of consensus, the Committee approved the June 27, 2022 meeting report. 

 
CHAIRMAN’S REMARKS 
Chair Tibbetts stated that he spoke with neighbors in the community and learned that one 
of the most attractive attributes of the Village was the safety and security provided. 

 
MEMBER COMMENTS 
Multiple members made comments and asked questions. 

 
Topics included: 

1. Extension of red “no parking” zone 
2. Flashing stop signs 
3. Converting a 2-way stop sign into a 4-way stop sign 

 
RESPONSE TO MEMBER COMMENTS 

 
Chair Tibbetts stated staff would look into the requested extension. 

 
Chief Nuñez stated that staff would look into gathering stop sign run data. 

Mr. Siviglia shared information on the mechanics of the flashing stop signs. 

Chief Nuñez agreed to generate a staff report recommending to either approve or deny 
the 4-way stop. 

Agenda Item # 14h 
Page 1 of 2



Director Karimi emphasized safety as utmost importance. 

Director McCary stated that she was appreciative of the 4-way stop sign issue being 
brought to the attention of the committee, and that she is thankful for Chief Nuñez 
making community safety a priority. 

REPORTS 

Disaster Preparedness Task Force Report 
Chief Nuñez discussed the meeting report provided in the packet. 

RV Update 
Chief Nuñez notified the committee of the newly vacant Security Administrative Specialist 
position, which is causing delays in the availability of RV lot occupancy updates. 

Noteworthy Incidents 
Chief Nuñez shared Gate Ambassador Supervisors efforts in providing better training to 
new and seasoned gate ambassador staff members. Chief Nuñez reminded the 
audience to drive safely, and shared an example involving a staff member. 

Security Statistics 
Mr. Nuñez explained the statistics provided within the agenda packet. Members made 
comments and asked questions. 

ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION 

Gate 1 Westside Fence Extension Discussion 
Mr. Siviglia discussed the Gate 1 Westside Fence Extension Financial Analysis and 
emphasized that cameras and sensors were down during the trespassing incident. 
Chair Tibbetts feels the equipment setup at Gate 1 is sufficient as is. 
Director Karimi agrees and supports funding for maintaining current equipment. 

ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS 
Conversion of 2-way stop sign to 4-way stop sign. Staff report to follow. 

CONCLUDING BUSINESS 

DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING 
The next meeting is scheduled for Monday, October 31, at 1:30 p.m. in a hybrid meeting 
on Zoom, and in the Board Room in the Laguna Woods Village Community Center. 

ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business to come before the Committee, Chair Tibbetts 
adjourned the meeting at 2:44 p.m. 

Don Tibbetts, Chair 

Agenda Item # 14h 
Page 2 of 2


	OPEN SESSION
	Board Room/Virtual Meeting
	NOTICE OF THE AGENDA
	1. Call Meeting to Order / Establish Quorum – President Carpenter
	2. Pledge of Allegiance – Director Skillman
	3. Acknowledgment of Media
	4. Approval of Agenda
	5. Approval of Minutes
	6. Report of the   Chair
	7. CEO Report
	8. Open Forum (Three Minutes per Speaker)
	9. Responses to Open Forum Speakers
	10. Consent Calendar
	11. Unfinished Business
	12. New Business - None
	13.    The Board will take a 5-minute break (if needed)
	14. Committee Reports
	16. Directors’ Comments
	Closed Session Agenda
	18. Adjournment
	5b GRF_Board_Agenda_Prep_09-15-2022_OPEN_(FINAL) (READY).pdf
	MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE THE GOLDEN RAIN FOUNDATION OF LAGUNA WOODS
	Thursday, September 15, 2022 – 9:30 a.m.
	1. Call Meeting to Order and Establish Quorum
	2. Approval of the Agenda
	3. Announcements
	4. Discuss and Consider Items to be placed on the Tuesday, October 4, 2022, Board Meeting Open & Closed Agendas
	5. Director Comments – None


	10b endorsements 10042022 to GRF-Donation of Drum Sander for Clubhouse 4 Woodshop (READY).pdf
	Blank Page
	For GRF-SR Donation of Drum Sander for Clubhouse 4 Woodshop.pdf
	STAFF REPORT
	RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND
	DISCUSSION
	FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

	I. Purpose
	II. Donation Defined
	III. Sponsorships Defined
	IV. Types of Donations and Sponsorships
	V. Consistency with GRF Interests
	VI. Standards for Donations and Sponsorships
	VII. Procedure for Making Donations and Sponsorships
	VIII. Criteria for Acceptance
	IX. Guidelines
	A. Flowers, shrubs and bushes
	B. Trees
	C. Signage
	D. Benches, tables and other amenities
	E. Buildings, structures and public art
	X. Conditions
	XI. Distribution of Donation and Sponsorship
	XII. Donation Record Keeping
	XIII. Declined Donations and Sponsorships

	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	11b Finance Committee-2023 Golf fees (READY).pdf
	Blank Page

	11c  2021 Operating Surplus (READY).pdf
	Blank Page

	11d GRF-Garden Center Operating Rules (READY).pdf
	Blank Page

	14a(1) August 2022 GRF Script (READY).pdf
	z___ 14a(1) August 2022 GRF Presentation - Full 12 Slides for distribution.pdf
	GRF Financial Report�As of August 31, 2022
	GRF Financial Report�As of August 31, 2022
	GRF Financial Report�As of August 31, 2022
	GRF Financial Report�As of August 31, 2022
	GRF Financial Report�As of August 31, 2022�Operating Only
	GRF Financial Report�As of August 31, 2022�
	GRF Financial Report�As of August 31, 2022�
	GRF Financial Report�As of August 31, 2022�
	GRF Financial Report�As of August 31, 2022�
	GRF Financial Report�As of August 31, 2022�
	GRF Financial Report�As of August 31, 2022


	14c GRF CAC report 2022-9-8 (READY).pdf
	Blank Page

	14d GRF Landscape Committee Report 9-14-2022 Open_ja_kw - signed (READY).pdf
	Blank Page

	14e(1) GRF Clubhouse Renovation Ad-Hoc Committee Meeting Report (READY).pdf
	Blank Page

	14g GRF-Mobility & Vehicles Meeting Report 2022-08-03 (READY).pdf
	Blank Page

	14h 29 August Meeting Reports Final - signed (READY).pdf
	CALL TO ORDER
	ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF PRESS
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	APPROVAL OF MEETING REPORT
	CHAIRMAN’S REMARKS
	MEMBER COMMENTS
	RESPONSE TO MEMBER COMMENTS
	REPORTS
	Disaster Preparedness Task Force Report
	RV Update
	Noteworthy Incidents
	Security Statistics

	ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION
	Gate 1 Westside Fence Extension Discussion

	ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS
	CONCLUDING BUSINESS
	ADJOURNMENT

	14a(1) August 2022 GRF Script (READY).pdf
	z___ 14a(1) August 2022 GRF Presentation - Full 12 Slides for distribution.pdf
	GRF Financial Report�As of August 31, 2022
	GRF Financial Report�As of August 31, 2022
	GRF Financial Report�As of August 31, 2022
	GRF Financial Report�As of August 31, 2022
	GRF Financial Report�As of August 31, 2022�Operating Only
	GRF Financial Report�As of August 31, 2022�
	GRF Financial Report�As of August 31, 2022�
	GRF Financial Report�As of August 31, 2022�
	GRF Financial Report�As of August 31, 2022�
	GRF Financial Report�As of August 31, 2022�
	GRF Financial Report�As of August 31, 2022

	Blank Page
	Blank Page




